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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

CORPORATE INFORMATION
ATIER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Fang Wen Quan
(Chairman and resigned as Managing Director on 3 August 2015)
Mr. Shi Shaobin
(Appointed as Managing Director on 3 August 2015)
Mr. Lui Man Sang
Mr. Liu Huijiang
(Resigned on 23 March 2016)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Shen Bo

(Appointed on 10 August 2015)
Mr. Feng Quanming

(Appointed on 23 March 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Yat Fai
Mr. Chiu Sung Hong
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
35th Floor, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISERS
Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo
25th Floor, Jardine House

1 Connaught Place, Central
Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lo Tai On
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ATEH

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Yat Fai (Chairman)

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong

Mr. Chiu Fan Wa

Mr. Shen Bo (Became a member since 10 August 2015)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Fang Wen Quan

Mr. Lam Yat Fai

Mr. Chiu Fan Wa

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Yat Fai
Mr. Chiu Sung Hong

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Fang Wen Quan
Mr. Lam Yat Fai

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

CORPORATE INFORMATION
ATIER

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS BMERRFTELEMME
Suites 2405-2410, 24th Floor &5

CITIC Tower hIE

No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue NEIE R

Central h{EXE

Hong Kong 241£2405-2410%

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE EERMBEREZEERTE
Tricor Secretaries Limited HEMEREERAS
Level 22, Hopewell Centre T

183 Queen’s Road East EEKIEFR1835F

Hong Kong S0 ib2248

PLACE OF LISTING LBy

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited EEMEXLZMERAE
STOCK CODE Rz 5%

00455 00455

CORPORATE WEBSITE UNGIFE
www.tiandapharma.com www.tiandapharma.com
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
RIS
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Below is the structure chart of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (the Group) as at 31 March 2016:

MUTRRREXLBRRS(ARRAS) ) RHEKEBAS( AERE )H2016F3A31E 2 2EH !

SIIC Medical Science and

Technology (Group) Limited Tianda Group Limited (Tianda Group)
FEERBERK AREBBERAR(RAEE)

(&E) BRRQA]

13.0% 55.6%

\\ XXEZRRAE

Public Shareholders

PR

Y TIANDA PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

(Stock code: 00455)
(R FR5% + 00455)

100%

unyu Bio-Pharmaceutical Co., Limited
EXREYREFRAF

100%
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited
AREZEBR AR
100% 100% 100%
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Tianda Biotech Limited Tianda Pharmaceuticals
(Ausiralia) Pty Ltd 'a”%aj( E% &'%%' 1 (Hong Kong) Limited Tianda Healthcare
RAREEHE R A RAREESE Investment Limited
(RAFIZE)BRAF ~ (BB)ERAT
100%
Tianda Pharmaceuticals
(China) Ltd *
RRBESE
(B ERAE]
49% 51%

Tianda Pharmaceuticals
(Zhuhai) Ltd *
RREEZ
* For identification purpose only ( fﬁ/ ) ﬁﬁE /R Ej

S

T
<t
=

Yunnan Meng Sheng
Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.*
THRAEEBRAT
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AT

RESULTS
Year ended 31 March
HEIRMHLILEE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET FHET FHET T
Revenue I 397,233 281,995 247173 139,367 192,785
Profit (loss) before tax R @Al B8 ) 102,702 83,359 64,426 (24,261) 18,425
Income tax (expense) credit FRsf i % (23,172) (15,663) (15,477) 1,245 (5,058)
Profit (loss) for the year REFEGHF(BHE) 79,530 67,696 48,949 (23,016) 13,367
Profit (loss) attributable to: w18 e B R
Owners of the Company YNNI 43,096 37,740 22,049 (17,942) 6,569
Non-controlling interests JERBE R 5 36,434 29,956 26,900 (5,074) 6,798
79,530 67,696 48,949 (23,016) 13,367
HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cent HK cent
A A A A g3 1]
Eamnings (loss) per share Pr&FI( B8 ) 2.30 2.02 1.18 (0.96) 0.32
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
LEEREBE
At 31 March
#R3A31H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FHETT THET FHETT FHETT FiET
Total assets BEEE 1,007,845 917,757 932,490 921,017 956,169
Total liabilities & a5 (137,899)  (142557)  (117.429)  (132,609)  (109,436)
869,946 775,200 815,061 788,408 846,733
Equity attributable to owners N/NGI
of the Company iy 702,958 737,995 751,146 729,344 813,748
Non-controlling interests JEfR R M &= 166,988 37,205 63,915 59,064 32,985

869,946 775,200 815,061 788,408 846,733
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EREE TS

REVENUE Ug A BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE &R E A
HK$'000 T %7t HK CENTS 711l BRI (E8E)

2016

192,785 2016

2014 247,173 2014 1.18

2ts s [

PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE  Z< 23 1IR3 EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS Z<A TR
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY FE{L55% Kl (&518) OF THE COMPANY Bl
HK$'000 T8 7T HK$'000 F747T

2016 Lm

0 (2.260) 2014 751,146

] Ordinary profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company
RATRREE T @EF (EE)

] One-off items
—X4IER

Note:  One off items included loss on plant and machinery written off.
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEE

Mr. Fang Wen Quan, aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director in 2003. He is the Chairman, the chairman of the nomination
committee and a member of the remuneration committee and the risk
management committee of the Company, and a director of the Group’s
certain subsidiaries. Mr. Fang acted as the Managing Director during the
period from 1 September 2008 to 3 August 2015. Mr. Fang is the founder,
chairman and beneficial owner of Tianda Group, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, possessing ample experience in corporate strategy and
management. He studied International Relations in the University of Sydney
and Tsinghua University, and established a non-profit strategic studies think
tank called “Tianda Institute”. Upholding the morality of “Caring for a Better
World”, Mr. Fang always shows his greater commitment to community
services, including donations for the poverty relief, education and training,
healthcare, scientific research and environmental protection, culture and
arts.

Mr. Shi Shaobin, aged 48 was appointed as an executive Director on
13 March 2015 and the Managing Director on 3 August 2015. Mr. Shi is also
a director of the Group’s certain subsidiaries. He received his bachelor
degree in biochemistry from Sun Yat-sen University and master degree in
business administration and doctoral degree in enterprise management from
Sun Yat-sen Business School. He also holds the senior engineer
qualification. He has worked as director and senior management in several
large organizations in the PRC and Hong Kong, and possesses extensive
experience in management, marketing and governance in pharmaceutical
industry. Mr. Shi served as chairman of Guangzhou Pearl River Piano
Group Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 002678) which his resignation was on 22 March 2014. Mr. Shi also
serves in numerous public bodies including representative of the Twelfth of
Guangdong Provincial People’s Congress, executive director of Guangdong
Province Traditional Chinese Medicine Association*, director of Chinese
Medical Association and vice president of Guangdong Province Young
Entrepreneurs’ Association®.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESTE

Mr. Lui Man Sang, aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director
in 2013 and is a director of the Group’s certain subsidiaries. Mr. Lui joined
Tianda Group, the controlling shareholder of the Company in 2007 and is a
deputy general manager of Tianda Group. He is responsible for the financial
issues of Tianda Group and the Company. Mr. Lui possesses enriched
financial management experience covering a variety of industries including
auditing in one of the big four accounting firms in Hong Kong and
overseeing the finance department of a Hong Kong listed company. He
holds an Executive MBA granted by City University of Hong Kong. He is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Liu Huijian, aged 60, was appointed as executive Director in
2006. Mr. Liu resigned on 23 March 2016.

Mr. Shen Bo, aged 43, was appointed as a non-executive Director
and a member of the audit committee of the Company on 10 August 2015.
He is a certified public accountant of the People’s Republic of China. He
received his bachelor degree majoring in accounting from Shanghai Institute
of Construction Materials Industry and master of accountancy from Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Shen is the chief financial officer and joint
company secretary of Shanghai Pharmaceuticals Holding Co., Ltd..* (a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code 601607,
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, with stock code 2607), the chairman of Shanghai Medical
Instruments Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of Shanghai Pharmaceuticals Holding
Co., Ltd) and an executive director of China International Pharmaceutical
(Holding) Corporation Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai
Pharmaceuticals Holding Co., Ltd. established in Hong Kong). Mr. Shen
served as manager of finance department and chief financial officer in
several large companies in mainland China so has extensive experience in
corporate management, financial control, and governance of pharmaceutical
companies. From April 2001 to March 2010, Mr. Shen served as the head of
financial planning department, general manager of finance department and
chief financial officer in Shanghai Industrial Pharmaceutical Investment Co,
Ltd.* (@ company formerly listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock
code 600607). During the same period, Mr. Shen also served as the general
manager of finance department of Shanghai Pharmaceuticals (Group) Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Shen is a non-executive director of Shanghai Fudan-Zhangjiang
Bio-Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (a company listed on Hong Kong Stock
Exchange with stock code 1349).

* For identification purpose only
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEE

Mr. Feng Quanming, aged 39, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 23 March 2016. Mr. Feng is the deputy head of the finance
department and the secretary of the Communist Party’s sub-division
committee in the finance department of Hongta Tabacco (Group) Limited
(Hongta), which holds 9.65% equity interest in the Company. He has
extensive experience in corporate financial accounting and asset
management. Mr. Feng joined Hongta in July 2001. During the period from
August 2007 to September 2014, he took various positions in the finance
department of Hongta, including deputy head of industrial finance division,
head and deputy head of asset management division and head of general
management division. He was also the head of financial planning division of
Yunnan Hongta Group Co., Ltd*, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hongta,
during the period from June 2013 to August 2014. Mr. Feng obtained his
bachelor degree in accounting at Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics in 2001 and master in business administration at Renmin
University of China in 2009. Mr. Feng possesses the qualification of
practising certified public accountant in mainland China.

Mr. Lam Yat Fai, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the remuneration committee and a member
of audit committee of the Company in 2004. On 26 November 2013, he was
appointed as the chairman of the audit committee. He was appointed as a
member of nomination committee and risk management committee on 22
July 2009. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising). He is also a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Lam worked with Kwan Wong Tan & Fong and Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu for over 10 years. Mr. Lam has over 26 years of experience in
auditing, taxation, corporate finance and accounting. Mr. Lam is an
independent non-executive director of Oriental Press Group Limited, which
is listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESTE

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong, aged 69, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee of the Company
with effect from 10 April 2008. Mr. Chiu ceased to act as the chairman of the
audit committee and remained as a member of the committee on 26
November 2013. Mr. Chiu was appointed as the chairman of risk
management committee on 22 July 2009. On 1 April 2012, he was
appointed as the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of
the nomination committee. He received an LL.B. degree from the University
of Sydney. He is admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of New South
Wales and the High Court of Australia. He has over 30 years of experience
in legal practice. Mr. Chiu is the founding member of the Board of Trustees
of the Australian Nursing Home Foundation and served as the General
Secretary of Australian Chinese Community Association of New South
Wales. Mr. Chiu is an independent non-executive director of CNOOC
Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and Bank of China (Australia) Limited.

Mr. Chiu Fan Wa, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the remuneration committee and audit
committee of the Company on 31 March 2009. Mr. Chiu is a founder and
the managing director of Chiu, Choy & Chung C.P.A. Limited, and a partner
of F. S. Li & Co. He graduated from City University of Hong Kong and
obtained a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree with major in accountancy in
1992 and was awarded a Master of Professional Accounting from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2002. He is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow member of the Institute of the
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a member of The Society of
Chinese Accountants & Auditors, an associate of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and an associate of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, United Kingdom, a fellow member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a Certified Tax Advisor. Mr. Chiu is
also an independent non-executive director of Kenford Group Holdings
Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN
ERRIE

Against the backdrop of a continuous depressed global economy,
China managed to maintain a medium-to-high economic growth rate. While
the pharmaceutical industry in China faced a difficult operational
environment, the global pharmaceutical industry experienced continuing
growth. In China, a series of policies were introduced, aiming to improve the
registration and approval system for pharmaceutical products, facilitate a
consistency evaluation on generic medicines, regulate the production of
traditional Chinese medicines, implement and promote the “Two Value-
added Tax Invoices System” in the field of pharmaceutical distribution,
improve the nation-wide public healthcare insurance system and optimise
the industry structure. All these measures served the purpose of ensuring
the benign development of the industry.

Fully taking the advantages of favourable policies and market
opportunities in the previous year, the Group actively responded to adverse
factors and challenges from the industry by continuously strengthening its
daily operational management and increasing its efforts in product
development, sales and marketing, investment and development initiatives,
which were proved effective. During the financial year ended 31 March 2016
(FYE 2016/the Current Financial Year), the Group recorded a consolidated
revenue of HK$192,800,000, representing a substantial increase of 38.3%
when compared to the financial year ended 31 March 2015 (FYE 2015). A
profit attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$6,600,000 was
recorded as compared to a loss incurred in FYE 2015. The overall gross
profit margin also improved significantly as compared to FYE2015,
increasing from 50.1% to 57.4%.

During the Current Financial Year, the Group spared no effort to push
forward its ongoing R&D projects. Among them, a permit for clinical test in
respect of a diabetic medicine named Acarbose was granted by the State
Food and Drug Administration of China. The Group also diversified into
innovative R&D projects, including investing in Aslan Pharmaceuticals
Limited (ASLAN), a Singapore-based pharmaceutical R&D company
focusing on oncology therapies, marking its first step into the R&D of top
level pharmaceutical products. We will continue to expand the product
portfolio of Herb Valley, an Australian healthcare brand.

In order to better respond to the increased risks against bidding, the
Group kept sourcing new marketing and sales channels. In addition to
consolidating our position in the hospital sector, we will step up to tap the
markets of chain pharmacies and clinics, as well as the international
markets and build our own e-commerce platform for healthcare products.
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REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN
ERRIE

In July 2015, the Group successfully introduced Shanghai
Pharmaceuticals Group as its strategic partner so as to complement each
other and achieve win-win result. In December 2015, the Group invested in
ASLAN, an innovative pharmaceutical research company. During the
Current Financial Year, the Group recruited a number of seasoned senior
management staff and consultants with rich experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. All these have indicated that the “Three Top
Levels” strategy the Group has adopted, namely focusing on R&D of top
level pharmaceutical products, allying with top level pharmaceutical
partners, and recruiting top level professionals, are proven effective. As
such, the Group will continue to adopt such strategy and strengthen the
effort in investment development and talent recruitment in order to
accelerate its pace for further advancement.

While upholding the spirit of innovation and professionalism, the
Group will be marching towards the phased business objective of ‘Ten
Billion with Centennial Growth’ by optimising the product portfolio, gearing
up our expansion into the non-hospital markets in the sales network,
progressively creating new collaboration opportunities and new growth
drivers, reinforcing management at different levels and thus thoroughly
enhancing and ensuring efficiency and effectiveness as a whole.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of Directors recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HKO0.27 cents per share for the FYE2016 (FYE 2015: nil), subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 2016 annual general meeting.
The final dividend is expected to paid on or before 9 September 2016.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to
shareholders, customers and partners for all their long lasting trust in and
support to our Group. | am looking forward, with our joint efforts, to further
utilising our strengths to speed up our development and to take the Group
to a new stage.

Fang Wen Quan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2016

Annual Report 2016
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRfER SR

The Group is devoted to the research and development, production
and sales of pharmaceutical, biotechnology and healthcare products. With
its headquarters in Hong Kong, the Group also established sales and
marketing centres in Shenzhen and Sydney as well as research and
development centres and production bases in Zhuhai and Kunming. Our
products include cardio-cerebrovascular drugs, paediatric drugs, anti-flu and
respiratory system drugs, anti-infection drugs, medicines for drug addicts
and other pharmaceutical products, as well as healthcare products under
the Herb Valley series. A majority of these products have been listed in the
“National Basic Medical Insurance Drugs Catalogue” and “National Essential
Drugs Catalogue.”

The Group focused on cardio-cerebrovascular drugs and paediatric
drugs, achieving satisfactory results and progress during the Current
Financial Year. With the policies of pricing reform of medicines in China, the
Group benefited from a more flexible pricing mechanism greatly in
expanding the OTC drug market. On the other hand, the government further
put forward policies favouring the development of Chinese medicines, which
will bring plenty room for the development of the Group’s exclusive Chinese
medicine for drug addicts, namely
Yi An Decoction, traditional
Chinese lipid control product,
namely ZhiKang Granules, and
healthcare product, namely Qi-
Shangzhen Oral Solution which is
primarily made of panax
notoginseng.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the FYE 2016, a consolidated revenue of approximately
HK$192,800,000 was recorded by the Group, representing an annual
growth rate of 38.3% as compared to approximately HK$139,400,000 for
FYE 2015. Gross profit increased from HK$69,800,000 for FYE 2015 by
around 58.7% to HK$110,700,000. The Group recorded a profit attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$6,600,000 for FYE 2016
as compared to a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$17,900,000 for FYE 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRfER SRR

Although a minority part of the increase in revenue was offset by the
depreciation of Renminbi, Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) Ltd (Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai)) and Yunnan Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd (Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical), both of which are subsidiaries of the
Group, recorded growth in results. Further business expansion of Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) led to an increase in sales revenue of 2.6% from
HK$120,800,000 for FYE 2015 to HK$123,900,000. Due to effective cost
control measures, the gross profit margin of Tianda Pharmaceuticals
(Zhuhai) increased from 61.9% for FYE 2015 to 65.5% for FYE 2016.

After completing the expansion and upgrade project, Meng Sheng
Pharmaceutical resumed production and restored its sales revenue to
HK$65,500,000 for FYE 2016 from HK$16,400,000 for FYE 2015. Sales
revenue from its flagship product, namely Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate
Injection, rose to HK$57,600,000 for FYE 2016 from HK$5,200,000 for FYE
2015. Benefiting from the relatively high gross profit margin of
Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate Injection, the gross profit margin of Meng Sheng
Pharmaceutical increased from 52.2% for FYE 2015 to 65.9% for FYE 2016.

At the same time, the Group also stepped up its effort in expanding
Herb Valley series of healthcare products by introducing Super Manuka
series of natural honey products to the market of mainland China. Revenue
from healthcare products increased from HK$2,100,000 for FYE 2015 to
HK$3,200,000 for FYE 2016.
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRfES RN

Selling and distribution expenses increased basically in line with sales
revenue from HK$43,700,000 for FYE 2015 to HK$51,100,000 for FYE
2016. However, administrative expenses decreased by 15.6% from
HK$59,400,000 for FYE 2015 to HK$50,100,000 for FYE 2016, which was
mainly attributable to the fact that certain indirect production costs were
reclassified to administrative expenses during the production suspension
period in FYE 2015.

The Group maintained a stable and strong financial position by
restoring a positive cash inflow of HK$13,400,000 for FYE 2016 as
compared to the operational cash outflow of HK$16,300,000 for FYE 2015.
With the placement of new shares to Shanghai Pharmaceuticals Holding
Co., Ltd. (SPHL) in August 2015, the Group further advanced its financial
capabilities. As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s bank deposit, bank balance
and cash amounted to approximately HK$394,300,000 without record of
external borrowing. Current ratio and quick ratio improved from 5.31 and
4.88 as at 31 March 2015 to 6.39 and 5.84 as at 31 March 2016
respectively.

The Group'’s sufficiency in cash provided a strong support for
business expansion, development and investment in the future. In FYE
2016, the Group purchased a land parcel in Sanzao Medicine Park in
Zhuhai City at a consideration of HK$40,900,000 for the construction of a
new research and development and production base. As at 31 March 2016,
the Group had no material capital commitment in respect of the project. In
addition, the Group invested approximately HK$30,100,000 in ASLAN, a
Singapore-based pharmaceutical R&D company focusing on oncology
therapies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRfER SRR

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the FYE2016, the Group stated a well-defined direction for
operation and development under the guidance of the annual theme of
“Innovation and Professionalism”. On one hand, the Group aimed to achieve
the goal of continuous cost reduction and efficiency improvement in various
respects by exerting greater efforts in market development, speeding up the
research and development projects and the introduction of new products,
implementing strict quality control measures and thus enhancing the overall
productivity. On the other hand, the Group strived to identify investment,
merger and acquisition opportunities and cooperate with third parties so as
to build stronger capabilities for further development on a continuous basis.
Sound corporate development was therefore achieved through the
combined effects of two major measures, namely endogenous development
and external expansion.

V{IETFHH*%HJKMM

BAXY “u 51

o The Group further consolidated its position in the hospital
sector and explored the markets of chain pharmacies and
clinics to boost its sales.

o In order to further facilitate the combined application of
paediatric drug series, a databank of paediatric experts was
built to support the academic promotion activities of paediatric
drugs. Nearly 600 academic promotion events were held
throughout the year and satisfactory results were achieved.

o We made great efforts in exploring the overseas market for
Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate Injection and speeded up product
registration procedures in Eastern European countries and
Southeast Asian countries to capitalize on the tremendous
market potential in the future.

e3P

20168 BUE E N > A& B 7 8 i
BEAFEEETEMNEE T #— 58
MTKEHEAO e —FE AT HH
WHE  MRIBEEFENFELSIE &
BREEOEWRABEER ZHFER
AEgHoF—HE SABBEREHEMD
HINEGE FNEERERED - (RERNIE

M RFIGRIN R MR AT BREN
WE - AT -

SIRBER -

. WET
SHEEFE =R DURTHEE o

E 5 0 AR #EE

*  MARRBRINEmEE BENE
B BIRBERE RERR
ERBMERE eFHETTE
60015 2T FiTE > WME TR
HFHIBR ©

o RAOHEETH S E AKBEYKN
BINTD BRI MBEAERERKRRK
EEEERNELEMIE 2
BARKE KATHIEES o

B 17



Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRfER SR

. Herb Valley series healthcare products have been introduced
to over 400 branded chain stores covering Australia, Hong
Kong, Macau and mainland China. It is expected that there will
be over 1,000 chain stores under this cooperative arrangement
in 2016. The online selling platform (www.herbvalley.com) of
Herb Valley has been launched officially. More quality
healthcare products will be introduced and more effort on

developing e-commerce channels will be made.

o The preparation technique
of Valsatan Capsules
was granted an invention

patent right in China with
a term of 20 years, which
will offer the Group a
consistent growth
momentum.

° A clinical test approval for a chemical drug, namely Type Six
glucose-lowering Acarbose, was granted by the State Food
and Drug Administration of China, marking a breakthrough for
the Group in the research and development of diabetic drugs,
which will bring about positive impact on our product mix in the

future.

o SPHL became our second largest shareholder and strategic
partner through strategic investment in the Group. Leveraging
strengths of each other, both sides will cooperate in various
aspects, including research and development, production,
sales and marketing and funding, in pursuit of mutual benefits

and a win-win situation.

o The Group invested in, and became a shareholder of, ASLAN,
a Singapore-based pharmaceutical R&D company focusing on
oncology therapies, marking its first step in the high-end and
innovative pharmaceutical research and development area and
the accumulation of experience in collaborating with
international pharmaceutical companies. ASLAN is dedicated
to the research and development of targeted drugs and
immunotherapies, with the expectation to secure a foothold in

the huge anti-cancer medicine market in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRfER SRR

o A number of task groups were set up to identify merger and
acquisition opportunities in respect of research, analysis and
selection of pharmaceutical investment projects in countries
and regions including China, Europe, America, Israel, Australia,
etc. Certain projects, including those related to pharmaceutical
devices and medical services, have gained meaningful
progress.

o The construction of a new R&D and production base for Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) is underway. A land parcel in
Sanzao Medicine Park in Zhuhai City was purchased and the
title deed of real property and the permit for construction land
have been granted. Preparation works in all aspects have been
in progress. Construction of the new base will definitely help
take the Group to the next level in terms of product
cooperation, productivity consolidation, investment, merger and
acquisition and professional standard. Upon completion of the
new base, the Group’s overall competitiveness, ability in
sustainable development and economy of scale will be
enhanced definitely.

OUTLOOK

The annual theme for management in 2016 is “Efficiency and
Effectiveness”. According to the stated theme, the Group will continue to
strengthen its research and development activities and its production and
marketing management while stepping up its effort on staff training and
team building as well as improving the management of financial affairs and
investment and financing activities. The Group will further develop the
existing medicine and healthcare product business, and will also introduce
international leading pharmaceutical products and medical devices from the
international market via various means and facilitate timely investment in
medical services and other healthcare industries, so as to improve our
profitability and business scale, speed up to realise the phased business
objective of “Ten Billion with Centennial Growth” in near future.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s liquidity remained healthy. As at 31 March 2016, the
Group had cash and bank balances of approximately HK$394,300,000, (31
March 2015: HK$384,200,000), of which approximately 31.4% and 68.3%
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi respectively with
remaining in Australian dollars, Euros and United States dollars. The Group
has no external borrowing as at 31 March 2016. Therefore, the Group has
sufficient financial resources to meet its obligation and daily operational
needs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EXCHANGE RATE EXPOSURE

The Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are substantially
dominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, Australian dollars, and United
States dollars.

The Group has sales and investments in foreign operations which
use currencies other than its functional currency Renminbi. As such, the
Group had some exposure to foreign currency risk. The management from
time to time determines suitable measures, such as entering into forward
currency contracts, to lessen exposure to exchange rate fluctuation in
material transactions denominated in currencies other than Renminbi. The
Group did not enter into any forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risk as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2016, the Company had pledged certain bank
deposits (31 March 2015: Nil) in favour of a bank to secure bank facilities
granted to the Company. The bank facilities were undrawn during the year
ended 31 March 2016.

EMPLOYEES

The Group employed approximately 425 employees in Hong Kong,
China and Australia as at 31 March 2016. The Group remunerates its
employees based on market terms and the qualifications and experiences
of the employees concerned.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELHRE

The Company is firmly committed to maintaining statutory and
regulatory standards and adhering to the principles of corporate
governance, emphasizing transparency and accountability to the
shareholders.

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the CG Code) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the Listing
Rules) during the FYE2016 except as mentioned below.

Pursuant to code provision of A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate. Prior to 3 August
2015, Mr. Fang Wen Quan was the Chairman and the Managing Director.
The Board was of the view that Mr. Fang Wen Quan acting as both the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director was acceptable and in
the best interest of the Group because of the business operation and the
size of the Group. However, in order to enhance the level of corporate
governance, Mr. Fang Wen Quan ceased to act as the Managing Director,
and Mr. Shi Shaobin, an executive Director, was appointed as the Managing
Director with effect from 3 August 2015. Subsequent to the cessation of Mr.
Fang Wen Quan and appointment of Mr. Shi Shaobin as Managing Director,
the Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions of the CG
Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the businesses, strategic development, financial
performance and corporate governance of the Group. The management is
delegated with the powers and authorities for overseeing the day-to-day
operation of the Group.

The Board currently consists of 8 Directors, comprising 3 executive
Directors, 2 non-executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive
Directors (INEDs) namely:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman)

Mr. Shi Shaobin (Managing Director)
Mr. Lui Man Sang

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Shen Bo

(Appointed on 10 August 2015)
Mr. Feng Quanming

(Appointed on 23 March 2016)

Annual Report 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELHRE

INEDs:

Mr. Lam Yat Fai

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa

During the FYE2016, Mr. Liu Huijiang resigned as executive Director
with effect from 23 March 2016 in order to devote more time on his personal
matters.

The Board believes that the balance between executive Directors and
non-executive Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient
balances that protect the interest of the shareholders and the Group.

INEDs are appointed for a term of 2 years and are subject to
retirement in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

More than one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualification
in accounting or related financial management expertise. Save as disclosed
in the biographical details of each Director, there is no other relationship
(including financial, business, family, or other material/relevant relationship)
among members of the Board.

The articles of association of the Company provide that one-third of
all the directors shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting (AGM), and the INEDs are subject to this provision. The Company
has received annual confirmation of independence from the three INEDs in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has established a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserves to the Board for its decision. The Board reviews this schedule on a
periodic basis to ensure that it remains appropriate to the needs of the
Board.

The Board has established procedures to enable directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances to enable them to discharge their duties at the Company’s
expenses. The articles of association of the Company contain description of
responsibility and operation procedures of the Board. The Board meets
regularly to review the financial and operating performance of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELHRE

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including the following matters attended by the Board during the
FYE2016:

o develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations and adopt
the revised CG Code and revised terms of reference of the
Audit Committee;

o review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

o review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

o review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Directors’ training and professional development

Directors of the Company are continually updated with legal and
regulatory developments, and the business environment to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities.

All Directors are also provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Newly
appointed Directors are provided with the necessary induction and
information to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as their responsibilities under
the relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.
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Based on the training records provided to the Company by the
Directors, all the Directors have participated in the trainings by reading
newspapers, journals and updates and/or attending seminars relating to
corporate governance, regulatory updates, economy, general business or
director’s duties and responsibilities, etc. during the FYE2016.

Directors’ meeting
During the FYE2016, the Board held 4 full board meetings. The
attendances of the Directors at the meetings are as follows:

RIBEEF O A LS RH 5%
EREFN2016M BFENEBEERE
HAFI R B A SR /3 T SBEE 2 S
NEHMEEES RFEERD) ~ L% -

—REENEEHRES

EEEER
R016F BFEEN > EEGHTIUR
ExgeR EFEHRFERZBRAOT

Number of

Attendance
Directors =E H R
Executive Directors: BITES !
Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman) AXHEE(EER) 4
Mr. Shi Shaobin (Managing Director) WD St ( EFAEACTE ) 4
Mr. Liu Huijiang (Resigned on 23 March 2016) Bl & 5B A ( 7R20164E3/523H BE T ) 1
Mr. Lui Man Sang BXELE 4
Non-executive Directors: EPITES ©
Mr. Shen Bo (Appointed on 10 August 2015) oK SeHE( FR2015E8510H EZE (T )
Mr. Feng Quanming (Appointed on 23 March 2016) BRI A R20165E35230 #EZE1F ) 1
INEDs: B AFPITES !
Mr. Lam Yat Fai HEESLE 4
Mr. Chiu Sung Hong HEREE 3
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa HEWE L 4

The Board has also established the audit committee, nomination
committee, remuneration committee and risk management committee which
comprises a majority of INEDs. Each of these committees has its own terms
of reference to set out its specific duties and authorities and reports to the
Board. For the terms of reference of each committee, please visit the
website of our Company www.tiandapharma.com.

EFEQTNITEREZES REZE
Eg -FMESeREAREEZSE W
ERFERMABILFRTEE - ZEESR
X BT AASGZHEEE EPHIE
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company was established with
specific written terms of reference. It comprises three INEDs of the
Company, Mr. Chiu Sung Hong, Mr. Lam Yat Fai and Mr. Chiu Fan Wa and
one executive Director of the Company, Mr. Fang Wen Quan. Mr. Chiu
Sung Hong is the Chairman of the remuneration committee during the year.

The remuneration committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration to all Directors and senior
management of the Company and is delegated by the Board the
responsibility to determine on behalf of the Board the specific remuneration
packages for all executive Directors and senior management of the
Company.

The remuneration committee held 4 meetings during the FYE2016 to
review and make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors, the non-executive Directors, the
INEDs and senior management; and to review the bonus to senior
management.

Details of individual attendance of its members during the FYE2016
are as follows:
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Number of

Attendance

HERE

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong (Chairman) HEREE(ZE) 3
Mr. Fang Wen Quan XSRS 4
Mr. Lam Yat Fai MBEELE 4
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa N E LA 4

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in notes 11(a) & 11(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

RiE EHRAIMES T REREZER
ESVHMRIEG RS THEEZHE o
RIER 4R S B IR R M 5T11(a) R 11(b) ©
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established nomination committee comprising two
INEDs, Mr. Lam Yat Fai and Mr. Chiu Sung Hong and one executive
Director of the Company, Mr. Fang Wen Quan (who is the chairman of the
nomination committee).

The duties of the nomination committee are reviewing and
supervising the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
qualified individuals to become members of the Board, assessing the
independence of the INEDs and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

During the FYE2016, the nomination committee held 3 meetings.
Details of individual attendance of its members are as follows:

REEEE

KA EMIREEZEE HEBRE
MEBILFATEENEBLEERBRRE
FE LUSUIK/A\TZ BRITEETXE
TE(RREEZREGIH )

REZEEZHREARTRERES
SXRB -HERES VEAGEESE
MoOEEESFEME < AL sFEI I
WOESZEBIM  URRESZEZEY
ENEEOESERIERE

R B FEAN REBEZEGH£1T
=RgHko @ERMECHFEFBOT

: T

Number of

Attendance

H R

Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman) FXRERE(EE) 3
Mr. Lam Yat Fai WHESE 3
Mr. Chiu Sung Hong HEREE 2

During the FYE2016, the nomination committee had reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of
the INEDs and made recommendation to the Board on appointment of new
Directors and re-election of retiring Directors.

In considering the appointments of the new non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Shen Bo and Mr. Feng Quanming, the nomination committee
assessed their incumbent on criteria such as integrity, independent
mindedness, experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort to carry
out their duties and responsibilities effectively, etc. and made
recommendation to the Board for approval.
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Board Diversity Policy
The Company has a board diversity policy aiming at setting out the
approach on diversity of the Board of the Company.

The Board recognizes the importance of having a diverse board in
enhancing the Board effectiveness and corporate governance. A diverse
board will include and make good use of difference in the skills, industry
knowledge and experience, education, background and other qualities, etc.
of Directors and does not discriminate on the ground of race, age gender or
religious belief. These differences will be taken into account in determining
the optimum composition of the Board and when possible should be
balanced appropriately.

The nomination committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for directorships with regards to their qualifications,
skills, experience and knowledge, assess the independence of INEDs, and
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors in particular
the chairman and the chief executive officer.

The nomination committee is also responsible for reviewing and
reporting to the board diversity.

Board appointments will be based on merit and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

At present, the nomination committee has not set any measurable
objectives to implement the board diversity policy. However, it will consider
and review the board diversity policy and setting of any measurable
objectives from time to time.

Annual Report 2016

ERENE S TUBR

ERBEEHFT—HEFEMNELZ T
BE WHI K AT ZTHNEEEMEZ
i o

EFZSeNREFTEMESTILHIET
EEEURRGCEERZEEM 2L
EECABEAEERESSER®E 17
ENARER -BE -EERACHES
ZR O FEKIEEER £ M FER
BEMmMEMER AATEEGZ&IE
HRFEEEHEER WETERAH
ZRMBEEFE -

REZECEEENEETSRE B
WRRAM( BERKE A REER) T
FRUHRETzEHOEETSREEZE
EEERMREETEMEZHEEANR I
RBEE RE -KBRRUBRBREE
EARGHLEOMESTSREEZR  FEHE
TFRTESZB LM RREEZEER
EEEEE( RER IR RITBAN )
FHEEMEFSREIER

REZSETAERITESTEMNES
T WO EEGER o

EEgAABES ZRRBEFEES
TREZBEE KBEXEEFTESHNE
Zrlbz B miE  BIEREANMMERE -

BEl» REZESHEBTESEMNE
ZRACBR T ARG STEATTHEERS
AR REZEEHFETHERERBRTE
EEMREZTALBE  UHFTEMTRHE
BiR o

A 27



28 IEEEEEE)

Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELHRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three INEDs of the Company, being,
Mr. Lam Yat Fai, Mr. Chiu Sung Hong and Mr. Chiu Fan Wa and one
non-executive Director Mr. Shen Bo. Mr. Lam Yat Fai has been the
chairman of the audit committee during the FYE2016.

SMIERTES IMREELE

EREEY
BREEEMEBREAANTIZ=421

SRR

A ENELER—BERTESE R L
A o bR B B S A B FN20168F B I N A B

BEEEo
The role and function of the audit committee include the followings: ENEEEHERNESBEUTE
I8
o review of and monitor the external auditor’s independence and o RERAEERIR E’“é’?@ﬁ[\ﬂs’f?%‘(
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in (e SR BB RIZEREF S
accordance with applicable standard: B
o review of the annual and interim financial statements prior to o NIREEFESHENEREER
their approval by the Board, and recommend application of THIBf SRR MUREZERS
accounting policies and changes to the financial reporting STBSR R BB ERE R 2 &8
requirements; and P53
o review of the Company’s financial controls, internal controls o EHEANTIMBERE - AWE
and risk management systems to ensure that management has 2R EREESE > NHEEREE
discharged its duty to have an effective internal control system. EBEETREREIERAIE
BRRH o
During the year, the audit committee held 3 meetings. Details of MNAEER B % g @ T=RE
individual attendance of its members are as follows: TI BRI B = EHEY
Number of
Attendance
HE R E
Mr. Lam Yat Fai (Chairman) WRELREFE) 3
Mr. Chiu Sung Hong HERSE 2
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa HEMELLE 3
Mr. Shen Bo (Appointed on 10 August 2015) SR S FR2015E8510H EZE (T ) 1
The work performed by the audit committee during the FYE2016 720168F B £ & A “EZEBERET
includes the followings: ZTHEBEMUTEIE
. review the financial statements for the year ended 31 March . FRIELE2015F3[/3MH IEFER
2015 and for the six months ended 30 September 2015; H 2201598308 Jt/_\1 &A=z Bf
e
o consider and approve of the remuneration and terms of «  ERRIES I\H%T?%( il
engagement of the external auditor; and BRER ., &

. review the internal control and financial reporting matters of the
Company.

BRANS ZNBEER MR
WEFHo
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company has established risk management committee
comprising two INEDs, Mr. Chiu Sung Hong (chairman of risk management
committee) and Mr. Lam Yat Fai and one executive Director, Mr. Fang Wen
Quan.

The role and function of the risk management committee include the
followings:

o enhance and strengthen the system of risk mana%ement of the
Group and provide comments and recommendations thereon

to the Board;

o identify the risks of the Group and provide recommendations to
the Board; and

o other matters authorized by the Board.

The risk management committee did not hold any meeting during the
FYE2016.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the Model Code) of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors of
the Company, they all confirm that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the FYE2016.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees in relation to the audit and other services, including
reviewing interim results and taxation services for the year provided by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditor of the Company, amounted
to HK$1,200,000 and HK$229,900 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company acknowledge that it is their
responsibilities for preparing the financial statements. The Directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with relevant regulations and applicable accounting
principles. The Directors of the Company are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
statement of the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 45 to 46.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control so as to ensure the shareholders’ investment and
the Company’s assets are properly safeguarded. The system of internal
control is designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve corporate
objectives and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Company established an internal audit department during the
FYE2016 to assess its internal control system, formulating an impartial
opinion on the system, and reporting its findings to the Audit Committee, the
Chairman of the Board and the senior management concerned on a regular
basis as well as following up on all reports to ensure that all issues have
been satisfactorily resolved.

There is no material internal control deficiency that may affect the
shareholders of the Company which has come to the attention of the Audit
Committee or the Board. The Directors are of the opinion that the Company
has complied with code provisions C.2.1 and C.2.2 on internal controls as
set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

During the FYE2016, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal control system through the audit committee and the internal audit
department of the Company. The Board has also reviewed the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged and appointed Mr. Lo Tai On, a
representative from an external secretarial services provider, as the
company secretary of the Company. The primary contact person with the
company secretary of the Company is Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Deputy Financial
Controller. Mr. Lo has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant training.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the FYE2016, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they can
exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.
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The Company employs a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These
include general meetings, interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars. Procedure for voting by poll had been read out at the general
meetings. All votes of the shareholders were taken by poll. The Company
announced results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing
Rules.

The AGM of the Company was held on 28 August 2015. A notice
convening the AGM contained in the circular dated 30 July 2015 was
dispatched to the shareholders together with the 2015 annual report. A
separate resolution was proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect
of each separate issue, including re-election of Directors. Mr. Fang Wen
Quan, the Chairman and the executive Directors Mr. Shi Shaobin and Mr.
Lui Man Sang, Mr. Shen Bo, non-executive Director, and three INEDs,
namely Mr. Lam Yat Fai, Mr. Chiu Sung Hong and Mr. Chiu Fan Wa
attended the AGM to answer questions raised from shareholders. Mr. Liu
Huijiang, a then executive Director of the Company, was unable to attend
the 2015 AGM due to his other business commitment. No other general
meeting was held during the year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group fully recognizes the importance of employing a
professional, truthful and proactive attitude in promoting investor relations.
This underscores the Group’s persistence in maintaining optimum allround
communications with investors, allowing it to collect information and valuable
feedbacks from investors and announce its business strategy and direction
in due course. These efforts are critical for the Group to improve its
corporate governance and strengthen investor confidence.

Ensuring high corporate transparency is a key emphasis in the
Group’s investor relations activities. During the FYE2016, the Group
promoted investor relations through different channels. Regular meetings
were held between the management and investors. Latest information
regarding the Group and its business is proactively disclosed to investors so
that the best investment decisions can be made. Whenever announcements
on annual results, interim results and material transactions are made, the
Group will capitalize such opportunities to enhance communications with
investors, explaining to them the Group’s latest operational situations and
direction of development.

The Company also maintains a website at www.tiandapharma.com,
where updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information and news can always be found.
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Shareholders and investors may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through Investor Relations & Corporate
Communications Department whose contact details are as follows:

Address: Suites 2405-2410, 24th Floor, CITIC Tower,
No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong

Fax: 2541 6558

Email:  investor_relations@tianda.com

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The AGM of the
Company shall be held in each year at such place as may be determined by
the Board. All general meetings other than AGM shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting (the EGM). Set out below are procedures by
which shareholders may (1) convene the EGM; (2) put forward enquires to
the Board; and (3) put forward proposals at general meetings. The
procedures are subject to the Company’s articles of association and
applicable legislation and regulations.

(1)  Procedures for shareholders to convene the EGM
Any 2 or more shareholders holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition in aggregate not less than 25 per cent of such of the
paid up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

Such requisition must state the objects of the meeting and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company’s
principal office in Hong Kong at Suites 2405-2410, 24th Floor, CITIC
Tower, No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of such requisition proceed duly to convene the EGM, the
requisitionists themselves may convene the EGM in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be
convened by the Directors, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionists as a result of the failure of the Directors to convene
such a meeting shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

The notice period to be given to all the registered shareholders
for consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionist(s)
concerned at the EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal
as set out in the Company’s articles of association and the CG Code.
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(2)

(3)

Procedures to put forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct enquire to the Board. Al
enquiries shall be in writing with the detail contact information of the
requisitionists through the Company’s principal place of business of
Hong Kong at Suites 2405-2410, 24th Floor, CITIC Tower, No. 1 Tim
Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong or email to direct_enquiries@tianda.
com for the attention of the Board.

Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s articles of
association or the Cayman Islands Companies Law for shareholders
to put forward new resolution at general meetings other than a
proposal of a person for election as director. Shareholders may follow
the procedures set out above to convene the EGM for any business
specified in such written requisition.

The procedures for shareholder of the Company to propose a
person for election as director is posted on the Company website at
www.tiandapharma.com.

(2)

(3)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EREWE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are research and development, production and
sales of pharmaceutical, biotechnology and healthcare products.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016
containing a fair review of the business during the year and discussion of
future business development of the Group and the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group is set out in the sections headed “Report of
the Chairman” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 12
to 13 and pages 14 to 20 respectively of this Annual Report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are shown in notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. During the year under review,
there were no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
employees, customers and suppliers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Company is committed to the sustainable development of the
environment and our society. The Group has endeavoured to comply with
laws and regulations regarding environmental protection and adopted
effective environmental practices to ensure our business meet the required
standards and ethics in respect of environmental protection.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, as far as the Board and management are aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by
segment for the year ended 31 March 2016 is set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for approximately 16.6% of the Group’s total revenue
while the largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 3.9%
of the Group's total revenue. In addition, for the year ended 31 March 2016,
the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 29.5% of
the Group’s total purchases while the largest supplier of the Group
accounted for approximately 7.1% of the Group’s total purchases.

During the FYE2016, to the knowledge of the Directors, Tianda Group
and Hongta Tobacco (Group) Limited (Hongta) indirectly hold the respective
of 60% and 40% equity interest in BR/EAS R4S (2 3 A EN A FR/A S
(Zhuhai S.E.Z. Cheng Cheng Printing Company Ltd.) (Cheng Cheng
Printing) which is one of the five major suppliers of the Company.

Except for the above-disclosed, none of the Directors, associates of
Director or Shareholders of the Company (who to the knowledge of the
Directors owes more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any
interest in the Company’s five major suppliers or five major customers
during the year.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 47.

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKO0.27 cent (2015: Nil) per share for the FYE2016, subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming 2016 annual general meeting (the AGM). The
final dividend is expected to be paid on or before Friday, 9 September 2016
to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Wednesday, 31 August 2016.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
29 August 2016 to Wednesday, 31 August 2016 (both day inclusive),
whereby no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all completed forms of transfers with the relevant
share certificate(s) must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch
share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
26 August 2016.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 6 to 7 of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the FYE2016 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company's share capital are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

On 20 July 2015, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement (the Subscription Agreement) with SIIC Medical Science and
Technology (Group) Limited (SMST), pursuant to which the Company
agreed to allot and issue to SMST 280,517,724 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company at the subscription price of
HK$0.39 per subscription share. The subscription was completed on 10
August 2015. A total of 280,517,724 new shares of the Company have been
successfully allotted to SMST at the consideration of HK$109,401,912. The
net proceeds of the subscription of approximately HK$109 million were used
as operating and business development capital of the Group.

The Board considered that as a result of the above subscription, the
Company could broaden its shareholders base thereby increasing the
liquidity of the shares of the Company and form a strategic partnership
between the Group and the Shanghai Pharmaceuticals’ Group. The Board
also considered that the Subscription Agreement was entered into upon
normal commercial terms following arm’s length negotiations between the
Company and SMST and that the terms of the Subscription Agreement were
fair and reasonable so far as the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole were concerned.

Details of the above transaction were published in the Company’s
announcements dated 20 July 2015 and 10 August 2015.

Save for the Subscription Agreement as disclosed above, and the
share option scheme disclosed on pages 38 to 39 below, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the FYE2016 or subsisted at the end
of the year.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
FYE2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity set
out on pages 50 to 51 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2016, the Company had retained profits available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie as computed in accordance
with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands of approximately
HK$139,796,152. Moreover, the share premium account of the Company
may be distributed, provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. As at 31 March 2016, the Company’s share premium account
amounted to HK$339,066,948.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the FYE2016 and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman)
Mr. Shi Shaobin (Managing Director)
Mr. Liu Huijiang
(Resigned on 23 March 2016)
Mr. Lui Man Sang

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Shen Bo

(Appointed on 10 August 2015)
Mr. Feng Quanming

(Appointed on 23 March 2016)

INEDs:

Mr. Lam Yat Fai

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa

Mr. Feng Quanming was appointed as a non-executive Director on 23
March 2016 and in accordance with Article 91 of the Company’s articles of
association, he will retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company’s articles of
association, Messrs. Lui Man Sang, Lam Yat Fai and Chiu Sung Hong will
retire by rotation and be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
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INEDs are appointed for a term of 2 years and are subject to
retirement in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has entered into any service agreement with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within 1 year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31 March 2016, the interests of the Company’s Directors, chief
executives and their associates in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (SFO), were as follows:
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Shares of the Company N7 B 15
Number of
Name of Director Capacity shares held %
EEBE g% Er R mEE Atk
Mr. Fang Wen Quan Held by controlled corporation 1,194,971,370 55.56
(Note)
F RS A ZEFEERHE ( Btz )

Note: Al the above shares are beneficially owned by Tianda Group. Mr. Fang Wen
Quan has 100% equity interests in Tianda Group and, accordingly, is deemed to
have a corporate interest in the above shares owned by Tianda Group and all
the interests stated above represent long positions.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of a share option scheme (the Scheme) is to enable the
Company to recognize the future and/or past contributions of the
participants (as defined in the Scheme and including any director and
employee of any member of the Group) to the Company, and to attract and
retain such important participants and/or to maintain a continuing
relationship, with participants who have contributed to the result, growth,
success and benefit of the Group, and in relation to administrative staff, to
recruit and retain experienced and talented individuals and/or to reward their
past contributions.
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The Scheme is for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption on
13 July 2010. The Directors may, at their discretion, make an offer to any
participant to take up options. An option is deemed to have been granted
and accepted by the grantee upon his or her signing the duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the option and paying HK$1 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof.

The subscription price for shares of the Company under the Scheme
shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the offer date (which date must be a business day); (i) a price
being the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (i) the nominal
value of a share of the Company on the offer date.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10 per
cent of the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
approval of the Scheme. An option may be exercised during a period to be
determined by the Directors in its absolute discretion and in any event such
period shall not be longer than 10 years from the date upon which the option
is granted.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant under the Scheme in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1 per cent of the total number of shares in issue of
the Company. Any further grant of options in excess of the 1 per cent limit
shall be subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting with such
participant and his or her associates abstaining from voting.

No Share Option has been granted since the adoption of the Scheme
on 13 July 2010.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, AGREEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transaction, agreement or contract of significance to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save for the Scheme of the Company disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate and none of the Directors nor any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for
the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that every
Director shall be indemnified out of the funds of the Company against all
liability incurred by him as such director in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour, or in which
he is acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against the Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 March 2016, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that the
following shareholders had notified the Company of the relevant interests in

5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:

Annual Report 2016
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20165373318 » RIFF SR P ERK
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Number of
Name of Shareholder Capacity shares held %
Rz
R Z 54 RHBEAE Bkt
Tianda Group Beneficial owner 1,194,971,370 55.56
(Note 1)
ARREE BEmEAA ( Btz21)
Mr. Fang Wen Quan Held by controlled corporation 1,194,971,370 55.56
(Note 1)
TTXRTE SEAERE ( Btz21)
SIIC Medical Science and Beneficial owner 280,517,724 13.04
Technology (Group) Limited (Note 2)
(SMST)
EBEXBENK(KH) BiBEAA ( Btz22)
BRAS( LEEBZE)
Shanghai Pharmaceuticals Held by controlled corporation 280,517,724 13.04
Holding Co., Ltd. (SPHL) (Note 2)
FBBEEBRMNBRAT SREERHR ( frat2)
(EBE%E)
Shanghai Industrial Investment Held by controlled corporation 280,517,724 13.04
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. (SIIC) (Note 2)
FREX(EE )ARRST SEEEBFR ( Btz22)
(EE&EE)
Hongta Tobacco (Group) Limited Beneficial owner 207,616,264 9.65

(Hongta)
ABEE(KE)BRET
NS A1)

Notes:

(1) These 1,194,971,370 shares are beneficially owned by Tianda Group. Mr. Fang
Wen Quan has 100% equity interests in Tianda Group and, accordingly, is deemed
to have a corporate interest in the said 1,194,971,370 shares owned by Tianda

Group.

(2)  These 280,517,724 shares are beneficially owned by SMST. SMST is beneficially
owned as to 100% by SPHL and SIIC is the controlling shareholder of SPHL.
Accordingly, SIIC and SPHL are deemed to be interested in the said 280,517,724

shares owned by SMST.
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All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31
March 2016, no short position was recorded in the register kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other interest representing 5% or more in the Company’s issued share
capital as at 31 March 2016.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the FYE2016, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the FYE2016, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted “continuing connected transactions”
under the Listing Rules. Details of this continuing connected transaction
which is subject to the reporting requirements under Rule 14A.71 of the
Listing Rules are summarized as follows:

PURCHASES OF THE INSTRUCTION LEAFLETS AND
PACKAGING BOXES AND RELATED PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

On 24 April 2015, a framework agreement was entered into between
Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) and Cheng Cheng Printing for governing
the transactions of purchasing printed instruction leaflets, packaging boxes
and related products and services from Cheng Cheng Printing and its
wholly-owned subsidiary by Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) for a term of
three years for commencing on 1 April 2015 and expiring on 31 March 2018.
Cheng Cheng Printing is a subsidiary of Tianda Group, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, so it is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, this framework agreement and the
transactions contemplated under this agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the transactions are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 24 April 2015 and 5 May 2015.
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The annual cap and the actual amount of the above continuing b il 5 4B B 1 AT 5 7201687 B 2
connected transactions for the FYE2016 as shown as follows: FEFREEESEITOT
The actual
Business type The annual cap transaction amount
EHTESE FELR BERx5&HE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Purchasing printed instruction FREBENRIGRBAE ~
leaflets, packaging boxes and BEZURIBEE®D
related products and services B PR 6,500,000 3,625,132

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, INEDs have reviewed R#E £ AR A 5514A.551% » & 1 JE
the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that: TESCER LMFERER S WHET

1. these transactions were in the Group’s ordinary and usual 1. ZEXHGR/RNEEEBZz—HKKEH

course of business: BEFBREDEST

2. these transactions were entered into on normal commercial 2. ZEXGE—MEEGRNKETL

terms; and &

3. these transactions were carried out in accordance with 3. ZEXZRBHEBABRGRE

respective agreement terms which were fair and reasonable, T MZEHRABLAEEE I
and in the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a FEARTIRBERZ BEFH o
whole.

The Company’s auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu have provided a KRB ZZBMES BAER 7S5
letter to the Board confirming that the above continuing connected ~ BI{TE @ EE SR M — M eftf  #5R Lift
transactions: FEWMERLS

1. have received the approval of the Board; 1. KRHESSHE,

2. have been entered into in accordance with the relevant 2. TDIRBREZEXHZHFHBRE

agreement governing the transactions; and 513 K

3. have not exceeded the cap disclosed in previous 3. UWEBEBFAEAIEEZ LR

announcement(s).
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EREWE

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is based
on their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the
Directors are reviewed by the remuneration committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. No Director or any of his associates and executive is
involved in dealing his own remuneration.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the FYE2016.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
FYE2016 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

Fang Wen Quan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
GENVEE7 S e

Deloitte
=20

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TIANDA PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tianda
Pharmaceuticals Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group") set out on pages 47 to 124, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagements, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Annual Report 2016
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
CENVE S e

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2016 and of
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
24 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

rEiEmAHEEEWmR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 £{E20164£3/531H 1F E/ZE

Annual Report 2016

2016 2015
NOTES HKS$ HK$
Bff = &I BT
Revenue PN 7 192,784,764 139,366,849
Cost of sales SHERA (82,055,628)  (69,596,419)
Gross profit EF 110,729,136 69,770,430
Other income HEElA 8(a) 7,181,771 12,435,363
Other gains and losses HelmEER 8(b) 2,916,026 (1,621,802)
Distribution and selling expenses S (51,084,727) (43,676,337)
Administrative expenses T X (50,103,851) (59,378,934)
Research and development costs B AR AR (1,213,485) (1,757,830)
Interest expense on bank borrowing W|AEEFEXE - (32,565)
Profit (loss) before tax BRFIRIRFI( E518 ) 18,424,870 (24,261,675)
Income tax (expense) credit FRief( X iK% 9 (5,057,622) 1,245,389
Profit (loss) for the year KEFFEHFI R ) 10 13,367,248 (23,016,286)
Other comprehensive income (expense) AEEEELEKE
for the year (ZH)
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: D EEEF AR ERZEE
Exchange difference arising on translation of MEBINEBMEEZ
foreign operations PEHZER 332,148 (2,610,844)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: ~ FEE# HEAEw 2 EH -
Exchange difference arising on translation to RERZINEEMEEZ
presentation currency PE 5 =28 (33,830,429) 3,462,006
Total comprehensive expense for the year AFETEXL LR (20,131,033) (22,165,124)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: KERHF( B8 ERBA
Owners of the Company ViN/NCT S 6,568,591 (17,941,969)
Non-controlling interests By 6,798,657 (5,074,317)
13,367,248 (23,016,286)
Total comprehensive (expense) income AFE2T(XH )kE
for the year attributable to: REREEN
Owners of the Company AABIER (24,874,283) (17,314,163)
Non-controlling interests JEIR R AR 4,743,250 (4,850,961)
(20131,033)  (22,165,124)
HK cent HK cent
&AL A
Basic earnings (loss) per share SHRERRF(EE) 12 0.32 (0.96)
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
EETEIRR

At 31 March 2016 58201653 /531H

2016 2015
NOTES HK$ HK$
Bt 5 BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ML BEREE 14 155195155 168,057,695
Prepaid lease payments FEMFHE A 15 117,379,136 84,763,880
Goodwill [EE= 16 106,926,467 111,615,489
Intangible assets B EE 17 59,136,629 73,039,524
Deposit for acquisition of property, iz ﬁ% ¥~ BER
plant and equipment Tﬁziﬁf 423,517 1,250,347
Investments in redeemable convertible ¥ & 7 o] BE [0 o] #2 A%
preference shares B 18 30,072,784 -
469,133,688 438,726,935
CURRENT ASSETS MBMEE
Inventories 7E 19 41,681,095 38,584,028
Trade and bills receivables and TE UL BR FR R JE U Z 3R K.
other receivables HERKRK 20 47,213,504 55,274,130
Prepaid lease payments JEMFRE 318 15 3,839,469 3,165,017
Tax recoverable of Y [@ F I8 - 1,081,837
Bank deposits, bank balances and cash WITEF S BTEHRRES 21 394,301,141 384,185,151
487,035,209 482,290,163
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBBEE
Trade and other payables EAERREHEEREMARK 22 65,126,923 82,754,970
Government grants — current portion B 4 B — BHEBER 4> 23 120,904 126,119
Amount due to a related company FEA—RBE A S RIE 31(a) 1,323,935 1,355,935
Tax payable fE R 1B 6,896,286 6,673,647
Dividend payable to non-controlling shareholders  J& 1t 3 52 B% B% 51 B 2. 2,808,639 -
76,276,687 90,910,671
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFRE 410,758,522 391,379,492
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 484 &= 7 B B 1& 879,892,210 830,106,427
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ErETRSR

At 31 March 2016 582016F3/531H

2016 2015
NOTES HK$ HK$
Bff = BT I
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERENERE
Government grants — non-current portion B F# B — JEBDHRER 4 23 916,858 1,082,524
Deferred tax liabilities IR IE & & 25 32,241,599 40,615,967
33,158,457 41,698,491
NET ASSETS BEFRE 846,733,753 788,407,936
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BN HE
Share capital B A& 24 215,063,588 187,011,816
Reserves s 598,684,697 542,331,932
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KNS FEREE#E S 813,748,285 729,343,748
Non-controlling interests JEiERR R 32,985,468 59,064,188
TOTAL EQUITY W45 846,733,753 788,407,936
The consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 124 were HRBUFIUNEZ GEMBREFERN
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2016F6F240EEE @ HERTREM
2016 and are signed on its behalf by: WHTIEERRESSHZ
FANG WEN QUAN SHI SHAOBIN
Chairman Managing Director
EFER EFELTE

B 9



Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£20162£3531 H 1 /&

Attributable to owners of the Company

FARRRESER
Captal ~ Capital Non-
Share Share  redemption contribution  Special  Statuory  Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reseve  reseve  reseve  resenves resemve profits Total  interests Total
28 28

ke BhEE EOEE GIEE SURE iTRE ERRE EEA i FERER &zt

HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HkS HiS HKS

AT AT AT AT AT AT BT BT AT A AT

noe()  note(i)
BEG) )

At April 2014 ROUELETE 167011816 274,638,193 8000 8969307 3460016 27812671 19348929 200007263 75114619 63,915,149 815,061,344
Loss for e year KERER - - - - - - - (1TH989) (1TH989)  (OTAMT) (23016286)
Eichange dfferencearsng ~~ HEEE 2ER
on franslafion 8 - - - - - - 60806 - 6086 2336 81162
Tota compehensie ncome.~ AEE2ERE
(etpese) or e e (%4 e - - - - - S GTNG (MSNNY (MY (S 85124
Aopropriaton of maintenance and B REER2
production saelyfunds ST
(o ) (W) - - - - - 1908 - (1926 - - -
Utsaion of mainfenanceand B RAEL 2
producion safey funds BefE
(e i) (H3)] - - - - (e T : - -
Dividend recognised as BAANRZ RS
dituton - - ; : : ; o (e - )
At 31 March 2015 RBEIYNE 16701816 274,636,193 8000 8969307 3460016 20588780 19976735 205700901 729343748 50,064,188 768407,9%
Proft for the year REEHA - - - - - - - 6568591 6968591 6798657 1336748
Echange dfferencearisng ~ AEEEZER
on tansaion £ - - - - - - (e CBEY  ROAT) (R8)
Totd compehensie ncome.~~ AEF2ENE
(expense) for the year (%t )28 - - - - - - (1442674 656591 (074203  ATA3280  (20313033)
s ofnewsharespon SRR RTHR
subscription (nofe 24) (His2) 805772 81,350,140 - - - - - - 100401912 - 100401912
Transacton osts atibutablets BT EHREER S
issue of new shares ik - (12809 - - - - - - (1509 - (1309
Appropriaton of manienarce and 1 R 4 &% 2
producton saefy funds L Sva)
(e i) (W) - - - - - %6 - (e - - -
Udisaton of mainenanceand B R4 XS
aroducton saefy unds BELRE
(o ) (Bt - - - - -9y - - - -
Dividends decared fo BEERER
noncontoling shareholders =R & - - - - - - - - - (30821970) (30.821970)
At 31 March 2016 RMGEIRYA 215,063,568 355,865,241 8000 8959307 3460016 007667 (114661%9) 211762105 813748285 32985468 84673375
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2016 £ 220165£3/531 H 1 /&

Notes:

(i

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal
amount of the share capital issued by the Company and the nominal amount of the
share capital of a subsidiary acquired by the Company pursuant to a corporate
reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1992.

The statutory reserves represent (1) the appropriation of certain percentages of
profit after taxation of the subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of
China (the PRC) as recommended by the directors of those subsidiaries based on
the PRC statutory financial statements and (2) provision for production safety
being accrued by a subsidiary in the PRC at fixed rates ranging from 2% to 4%
based on operating revenue (the maintenance and production safety funds), which
is transferred from accumulated profits to the specific reserve and could be utilised
when expenses and capital expenditures in production maintenance and safety
measures are incurred.

B st

(i

AEBZHHREFEDIARARIRE-BEARES
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEBERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£20162£3531 H 1 /&

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ETEE)
Profit (loss) for the year KEFEHFI( B8 ) 13,367,248 (23,016,286)
Adjustments for: RS S 2 A
Income tax expense (credit) FRef (%) 5,057,622 (1,245,389)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TEATFHE RIE 8 3,389,797 3,163,023
Amortisation of intangible assets EE EHS 11,687,796 12,115,738
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment V¥ - BERIETE 9,401,774 6,827,580
Release of government grants in relation to BT B EE T BT ED
certain assets (122,684) (261,682)
Interest income on bank deposits SRITERF BN (6,241,799) (9,701,679)
Interest expense on bank borrowing BOTEEFEXH - 32,565
Investment income from foreign exchange SNEENNIE B Z BN
linked investments (26,752) (853,229)
Loss on disposaliwrite off of property, plant HE MEYE- - BER
and equipment B P ofi-] 455,066 2,874,385
Wiite off of intangible assets BT L E 17,281 -
Operating cash flows before movements in LEESTHFF LE
working capital HWERE 36,985,349 (10,064,974)
Increase in inventories FEEM (4,311,038) (10,201,520)
Decrease (increase) in trade and bills i LISZ IR R BN ERR
receivables and other receivables B R FOR (30 ) 5,980,770 (10,691,985)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables & 'ﬁ' IR R HERA KD )0 (14,610,438) 20,246,397
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to JE -5 — RS B2 /2 S 3R IE I 0
a related company (D) 24,421 (112,503)
Cash generated from (used in) operations KREEBEXE(TA)IZRE 24,069,064 (10,824,585)
PRC income tax paid Ef S EFRER (10,625,197) (5,432,372)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING REFEHELE(RA)Z
ACTIVITIES HEREE 13,443,867 (16,256,957)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Interest received B F B 6,241,799 9,701,679
Purchases of foreign exchange linked investments &% & 5B # $93% & (1,162,280,328)  (1,194,475,994)
Proceeds from maturity of foreign exchange SNEE B S B B BAp S 2018
linked investments 1,162,307,080 1,195,329,223
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME -~ HEZ
and equipment Fr8 k18 312,962 25,001
Additions to prepaid lease payments FE AR E FRIELE 0 (40,858,924) -
Purchases of investments in redeemable FE B oI B O o] #R iR 1 e Bx
convertible preference shares & (30,072,784) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE BER&ME (3,278,642) (34,035,436)
Additions to intangible assets NEREEE (402,026) (46,779)
Advance payment for property, plant and equipment #1% ~ BB R X B - (1,249,559)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES & FESHAZRE rﬁ%‘ﬁ (68,030,863) (24,751,865)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEBIERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 £ 220165£3/531 H 1 /&

Annual Report 2016

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
BT BT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES &Y
Proceeds from issue of new shares BATH R T B RIE 109,401,912 -
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders Eﬁ eI BB 2 B (28,013,331) -
Cost of issuing new shares TR A A (123,092) -
Repayment of bank borrowing TEL%;@E HEE - (5,000,000)
Dividend paid to shareholders EfMEREZERE = (4,488,284)
Interest paid EfF A = (32,565)
Proceeds from bank borrowing RITEEMBERIE - 5,000,000
Additions of government grant in relation to METEEESBUTHENE I
certain assets - 1,260,398
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING MEEBEE(FRAIZ
ACTIVITIES INeFHEE 81,265,489 (3,260,451)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INCASHAND  R&RIR&ZEIEH M
CASH EQUIVALENTS (D )iREE 26,678,493 (44,269,273)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REVMZIRER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR HEFEEER 384,185,151 427,264,276
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE SMNEEEREEZHE
RATE CHANGES (16,562,503) 1,190,148
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RELRZRER
AT END OF THE YEAR, REeLBEER
represented by bank deposits, bank balances MSRITER N SBITEH K
and cash HERE 394,301,141 384,185,151
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£20162£3531 H 1 /&

1.

54 EEEEEES

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (SEHK). Its parent company and ultimate holding
company is Tianda Group Limited (Tianda Group), a private limited
company incorporated in Hong Kong, which is ultimately controlled by
Mr. Fang Wen Quan. The address of the registered office and the
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed on page 4
of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (RMB).
As the shares of the Company are listed in the SEHK, for the
convenience of the financial statements users, the results and
financial position of the Group are expressed in Hong Kong Dollar
(HK$), the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSSs)

(a) Application of amendments to HKFRSs
The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the HKICPA) for the first time in the current year:
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010 - 2012 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2011 -2013 Cycle

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material effect on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ErETERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 £ 220165£3/531 H 1 /&

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSS) (continued)

(b)  New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'
HKFRS 16 Leases*
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative?
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarification of Revenue from Contracts
with Customers'
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012 - 2014 Cycle?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception?

Annual Report 2016
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£20162£3531 H 1 /&

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSS) (continued)

(b)

56 IEEEEEEOS)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further amended
in 2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge
accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in
2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through
other comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement
category for certain simple debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ErETERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 £ 220165£3/531 H 1 /&

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. FERFEIRKEISIZHEBUHER

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSS) (continued) HHER ()
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b) CEGEEKRERZIFFTIREE
(continued) AT EB MRS &)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) BB IR EREIE o T A
(%
Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below: ERPHREED P
TESREHRMOT

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£20162£3531 H 1 /&

2. APPLICAT
FINANCIAL

ION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSS) (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continu

ed)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

58 EEEEEE0S

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ErETERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 £ 220165£3/531 H 1 /&

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSS) (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

o In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

. The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components of
non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company (the Directors) are in the
process of making an assessment on other impact of this
standard to the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities.
It is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
aggregate effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group performs a
detailed assessment.

FERMRI RGBT ZEBMBR
S HERN ()

(b) CHEGERRERZITREE
FIEBMBEHREER &)
BB B R E9r M T A
()

o HWEmMEEZHEMmMES
AR IR F B & 52 I 539
WIREEAEEERBER
STEMER EBMBRE
EH B RTIREREE
BEENITE-FEHEE
EEREERATEREN &R
LR EHEEERERR
ZEEREEBERECEH
AR MURBREERKE
%ﬂyﬁEuruleﬂ?Zﬁ@] o iR

EX O ERBEBFHREEE
$T¢7ﬂ§wf§§§ﬁﬂ °

o HIT —REPEFHECRK
B & & e st E 0583958 1R
F=fEE e RIEES o
RIBE BB HREER 9
EHEESRESERIE
HihestRE KBS
FTEHEMEE SR 2%
MEEBEAH T TR
TREEANREEREL D
SETEEZFESMIER
BB AL FER o b 0 AR
SURE B TR DK
BE1E ) R B BUAR o ¥ B
JREEAEEFTIE M o Hr
HERBSIANENKES
HEEEBRETETH R
= o

KASEE(EE)EHET
HZENELEBSHEERS
MAEBRZHEZE NEAKEHT
PSR SEAERT 0 £ \/i/—\fiﬁ%i;‘

7 B 75 3R 5 25 I SR 05% 1) 48 e
%o

B 59



Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£20162£3531 H 1 /&

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSS) (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1:

Step 2:

Step 3:

Step 4:

Step 5:

Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Determine the transaction price

Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSS) (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control
of the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The Directors are in the process of making an
assessment on the impact of this standard to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. It is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until
the Group performs a detailed assessment.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 Leases, introduces a single lessee accounting model
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all
leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16,
a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a
principal portion and an interest portion and presents them in
the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and
the lease liability are initially measured on a present value
basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable lease
payments and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option
to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as
operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MFRERMRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£20162£3531 H 1 /&

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSS) (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to
classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to
account for those two types of leases differently.

As set out in note 27, total operating lease
arrangements and commitments of the Group in respect of
office premises as at 31 March 2016 amounted to
approximately HK$6,304,000, the Directors do not expect the
adoption of HKFRS 16 would result in significant impact on the
Group’s result but it is expected that certain portion of these
lease commitments will be required to be recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as lease liabilities.

Except as described above, the Directors anticipate that
the application of the other new and revised standards and
amendments issued but not yet effective will have no material
impact on the results and the financial positon of the Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (the Listing Rules) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (CO).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended with reference to the
new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation
and disclosure of information in the consolidated financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 March 2016 have been changed to
comply with these new requirements. Comparative information in
respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2015 is presented or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based on the new
requirements. Information previously required to be disclosed under
the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not under the new CO or
amended Listing Rules is not disclosed in these consolidated financial
statements.

The provisions of the new CO (Cap. 622) regarding preparation
of accounts and directors’ reports and audits became effective for the
Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based payments, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£20162£3531 H 1 /&

3.

04 EEEEEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

TEEFTHRE)

s BB ERME 0 AR(E
EFFERREGAEZTERERE
RHEHERBANRABESEZEZLS
RN 2535 0 BT

o BIRBMNERTEINS
bz EREERN B E

18458 R sﬁ ),

. EMBEBNEAZIRFOS R
RO AR A B
BRECBAE R

o EMMANEREELEELT
Bz mANE-o

ZETBRBINWT

REMBRREBEARIRRA
RERHEMBAS S BRI
ok o BUSIEHIHEIEEARRE]

o  HREFEREMRE

o HENEMHBAFEBHEMDR

HEERIERNFE LR =18
RERRz-—EIZELHEES K
SESENILERTEHRIRED
o

MEBASINAEBIRSHMER
SRR SESYNAER KL
BN SHEHIEERE c RS
MNAFEERNFFREHE—BKBR
SzWHEREX  YEHAEENS
BRHEOEEERAEBRETHNB
NEBEFIEZBLE STAEERRER
HeE2mlmiko




Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ErETERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 £ 220165£3/531 H 1 /&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the relevant cash-generating unit (CGU) or groups of CGUs,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata based on of the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on
disposal.

FTEEFHRE)

mEEEE)

Bk SBEAE2OWHEEH
BRARSBRREIFERES - HB
NI ZEARGEBERBENR LA K
REFEE#ED  FEEHERIFE
i B A R o

E LS 2 B RERBES(E
SEERPEE TS ST [
LR e

SERRSEMzmEEERE
B WA - RXREHREEE
MEASBZZzRHETREERNES
IRE R HEE -

W

B B S 2 R
B B AR TR 2 LA B RS
B0 SR » R ESH BRI
KD w250 o

FEENATES > FEEHEE
HHOR ez HEAMES R AH
REELBNNZERSELES N o

ENLEREZRESELENEST
FEROBENZ  IRNERRETZ
BN TRETAERIINESEXE
TRENR AN REHEAWEES
ZHEMS  EIEFEZREESE
B ENZIRESHARIETRERNH o
HEREETELENZTWESEDRE
IREE BURERBES X BIEREKE
AN EZEN I EZRAOE H
BRAMRBZEVNAZEEERTER
BN EZENc HEEE o £
BEREERETEERNGEBRERH
TEHARERAIEBRANER c 25
BzBAEREBEASN T RHBE
[@ o

RHEEERLEL B B
B2 NS TSR EE 2 B
Bt

EEE 65



Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£20162£3531 H 1 /&

66 IEEEEEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for discounts and sales
related taxes.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders' rights to receive payment have been established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Construction in progress for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit and loss.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect
of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured
at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the asset is derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when an entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is (i) contingent consideration that may be paid by an acquirer
as part of a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies or (ii)
held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and is included in the ‘other
gains and losses’. Fair value is determined in the manner described
in note 18.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and bills receivables, other receivables, bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy in impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For financial assets including trade receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 60
to 180 days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amount
due to a related company and dividend payable to non-controlling
shareholders are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that from an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the
Group’s obligation are discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated cost of completion and cost necessary to make the
sale.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a post-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount
of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or CGU in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

HFEDRMARTEEFEME
th Z BIREFIER o BUA TS DUII#E 13
AETE IR FEEFELEEE
L 5E A B 2 B A b 5T RL A R AE 8
BB o

ARREREE(TERN ) ZRERS
il

RIWEHR  AEEFmsf H 0T
EHAFHERZBEERELEEZIR
HE NWEEZSEERGEHEMG
FURE BRI R o &7 15 BB
S HlgfhstzEEZTRESEHE
EEREEBR(WE )ZREE AT
BRI RE-—EEZTWE S Bl
FEBASZEEEZRESELEEN
Z B EER o WEEEBUEER S
—ZzRRKE B EZEETNE
FE-REELAEMN ANREHRTE
RERSERG—IREBEZ&DHE
EEEBEMAR o

AERFRHERBLEE &
DIZE R A O 48 TR E B R EF R
FAEHBE o

U E S ERIR A R EEREEE A
AREREBEMEPZBSETE-
L EREER AT RKESR
ENEARKRENREITRERTE
MRBRERTHEERIEHEFG
RZEE(LSTAKRBESAERTH
BE)ZHFARR MG EELTR
TELBN TRBSERNERET
B AZEESIRESELBENZIRE
BEedR b EHE T E S o MEE
REE NIRRT o

R EBENEERER > BIZE
ERHEESBNZROEENER
KESTEFTTRBSE > HEE <
REOEASEBZEENRTELSE
URNBEFEL ERDBEEERZF
MATREEEZREE - BREBER
Bl BN BF 7R 48 1 PSR ©

EEE 75



Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£20162£3531 H 1 /&

74 EEEEEE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of
that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange differences are
also recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and
their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), exchange difference accumulated in
equity arisen from the translation of the subsidiary or associate’s
functional currency, RMB, to the Company’s functional currency, HKS,
before the change in functional currency of the Company from HK$ to
RMB, are reclassified to profit or loss. Whereas exchange difference
accumulated in equity arisen from the translation of subsidiary or
associate’s and the Company’s functional currency, RMB, to the
Group’s presentation currency, HK$, are transferred directly to
accumulated profits after the change in functional currency of the
Company.

In addition, in relation to the disposal of a foreign operation
whose functional currency is in currency other than RMB (i.e.
Australian Dollar), the exchange difference accumulated in equity
arisen from the translation of the subsidiary or associate’s functional
currency, to the Group’s presentation currency, HK$, are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as
expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary condition
is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plan and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the
next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Determining whether an impairment is required requires an
estimation of recoverable amounts of relevant intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment or the respective CGU in which the
goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment belong,
which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell. If
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, recoverable
amount shall be estimated for individual asset. If it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group
shall determine the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the relevant
assets or the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. The discount rate represents rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or the CGU for which the future cash flow
estimates have not been adjusted. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected or there is a downward revision of future
estimated cash flows due to unfavourable changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation of the relevant assets and respective
CGU are disclosed in note 34.

Estimated impairment of trade and bills receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows.
The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March
2016, the carrying amount of trade and bills receivables was
HK$42,331,007 (2015: HK$47,562,508). No allowance for doubtful
debts has been provided for both reporting periods.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives, using straight-ine method, at the rates
ranging from 3% to 33.33% per annum. The estimated useful lives
that the Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment reflect
the directors’ estimation of the periods that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of the assets. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in useful lives and therefore increase or
decrease in depreciation in future years.

As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment is HK$155,195,155 (2015: HK$168,057,695). Details
of the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are disclosed
in note 14.

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets

The Group amortises the intangible assets over their estimated
useful lives, using straight-line method. The estimated useful lives
that the Group amortises the intangible assets reflect the directors’
estimation of the periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of the assets. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in
a change in useful lives and therefore increase or decrease in
amortisation in future years.

As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amount of intangible assets
is HK$59,136,629 (2015: HK$73,039,524). Details of the useful lives
of the intangible assets are disclosed in note 17.

Estimated impairment of financial assets at FVTPL

When there is objective evidence of impairment losses,
determining the extent to which financial assets at FVTPL is impaired
requires a computation of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return. As at 31
March 2016, the carrying amount of financial assets at FVTPL was
HK$30,072,784 (2015: nil). The management performed on
impairment review as at year end and considered no impairment is
necessary.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern in order to support
its business and maximise shareholders value. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share capital,
accumulated profits and other reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis to
maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the
Group’s business. The Directors also balance its overall capital
structure through payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debts.

6.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6.

a.  Categories of financial instruments
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a. EMIREH

Financial instrument classification 2016 2015
TRIENE HK$ HK$
T BT
Financial assets
ERMEE
Trade and bills receivables and Loans and receivables
other receivables® 44,038,688 48,700,986
JRE U Bl R R B U Z 4R BRREWRK
REEEWH
Bank deposits, bank balances Loans and receivables
and cash 394,301,141 384,185,151
RITHER BITERRES B R E WK
Investments in redeemable At FVTPL
convertible preference shares 30,072,784 -
P& 7 o] BE 0] o] ARG B S AR BN REESTAER
468,412,613 432,886,137
Financial liabilities EHMEE
Trade payables and other payables At amortised cost 18,750,531 19,904,712
EBRRFREEEMK R SR A
Amount due to a related company At amortised cost 1,323,935 1,355,935
& — R BAE A S FRIE R HA A
Dividend payable to non-controlling At amortised cost
shareholders 2,808,639 -
B ERRERZEE R SR A
22,883,105 21,260,647

* Excluding prepayments and deposits

* TEEENRERZS
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies

8?2 IEE=EEE0

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and bills receivables and other receivables, bank deposits and
bank balances, trade and other payables, amount due to a
related company and dividend payable to non-controlling
shareholders. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. It is, and has been throughout
the year, the Group’s policy not to enter into trading of
derivative financial instruments.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include credit risk, market risk (currency risk and interest rate
risk) and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to perform an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group requires
some of its customers to make prepayment on their purchase
of pharmaceutical products. And the management has
delegated a team responsible for the determination of credit
limits for other customers, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

At 31 March 2016, the Group has concentration of credit
risk relating to trade receivables as 24.3% (2015: 28.6%) of the
outstanding balances is due from five (2015: five) external
customers in the PRC. Other than several major customers,
the exposure is widely spread over a large number of
customers during the current financial year.
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6.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. £MITHE(@#)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HHBEMEERERBKRE)
(continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERR E)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the nBEEZEERRER
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by FERABEFH2EEREEFR
international credit-rating agencies or state-owned banks g A S E AR RITHM
located in the PRC. N BEzBEHRT
Market risks 55 JE B
(i) Currency risk () EEER

Certain bank deposits, trade receivables, other AEBETRGTHE
receivables, trade and other payables of the Group are HK-BWERA-HEREWK
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group currently H-BERETEMEKRX

does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. N EEFI{E o REE B H]

However, the management monitors foreign exchange I SN EHPBUR © 28T

exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign THEBRZNERM I

currency exposure should the need arise. MREFTERERHTE

K& JE Bk o
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign REREHER A&H
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary UHEINEzEBEER
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as EHRaBECRAELT
follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE BfE
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
&I AT &I BT

HK$ BT 123,735,682 9,504,477 126,250 -

United States Dollar (US$) ESH 30,386,533 676 - -

Euro (EUR) BT 8,119 8,075 - -

B 55
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6.  FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risks (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 4% (2015: 4%) increase and decrease in RMB, the
functional currency of the respective group entities,
against the relevant foreign currencies for the years
ended 31 March 2016 and 2015. The sensitivity rate
represents management's assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates with
reference to historical fluctuation of foreign exchange
rates during the year. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at 31 March
2016 and 2015 for a corresponding change in foreign
currencies rates. A negative/positive number below
indicates a decrease/increase in post-tax profit for the
year where the RMB strengthens against the relevant
currencies. For a weakening of RMB against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax profit for the year.

6.

£ T E(m)

b.
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2016 2015

HK$ HK$

BT BT

HK$ BT (4,129,000) (365,000)
us$ £ (1,014,910) (23)

The balances of bank deposits denominated in
foreign currencies fluctuated throughout the year and in
management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risks (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate

risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank deposits and bank balances which
carry at prevailing market interest rates. The Group
currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy.
However, the Group monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to the bank deposits
and bank balances which bear floating interest rates at
the end of the reporting period. A 10 basis points (2015:
10 basis points) increase or decrease is used to present
management assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates for those balances mainly
denominated in RMB and HK$ at the year end.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2015:
10 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax profit/loss for
the year ended 31 March 2016 would increase/decrease
approximately by HK$394,000 (2015: HK$384,000).

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

6.

SR TE(®)

b. HMBEKREERSRBKR &)

SRR E)
(i) FFE
AEBEHERERE

FMERBEZEHNRURIT
BHEFRBZROTFAR
BITEBZRHTHHHN X
BB - AEBHEFW
AT AT F EH P EK o A
i AER B R A R Ja e
THNBESEZREPE
RF LB o

FRGREE DT

IR SR E AT T &
R|WEHRFERRITER
R SRIT 45 BR P H BR < L B
B o LT BR10{E £ RS
(20154 0B &% )73 AR
2IEERHIENAR
BRBTIEZLEHRZF
EF XS HEEEH 5T
f&o

i % = £ 7+ B10
{EE 2 ( 20155F < 10{@ &2 )
AR EEBRHFIE
A R A Z2016 538318 1b
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6.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. E£RITHE(@#)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HBEREERERBIR 4)
(continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining TRFAINAXEEBRERE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities BBz ESTESHEEZR
based on the agreed repayment dates. The table has been BREAHAMR o 2R DIRIB ALK
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial ROUWERERESHEEZRE
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be BiizemaERTAEESRE
required to pay. YRE o

Weighted
average 3 months Total
effective Less than to  undiscounted Carrying
interest 3 months 1 year cash flows amount
T Ui =R KRB
BRHE =fEA E-F RELE REE
% HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
As at 31 March 2016 R20165£3A31H
Trade and other payables ENRFRECEMK - 18,750,531 - 18,750,531 18,750,531
Amount due to a related company & — &I B E A S 5008 - 1,323,935 - 1,323,935 1,323,935
Dividend payable to ERFERRRZBE
non-controlling shareholders - 2,808,639 - 2,808,639 2,808,639
22,883,105 - 22,883,105 22,883,105
Weighted
average 3 months Total
effective Less than o undiscounted Carrying
interest 3 months 1 year cash flows amount
IR DR @R AEHHE
BIEA % =f@n E-F MEER REE
% HKS HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 March 2015 R201553A31H
Trade and other payables ENRAFRECEMNK - 19,526,354 378,358 19.904,712 19,904,712
Amount due to a related company & — &I B E A 5508 - 1,355,935 - 1,355,935 1,355,935
20,882,289 378,358 21,260,647 21,260,647
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c.  Fairvalue
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of all
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate to
their corresponding fair values.

The financial asset at FVTPL is measured at cost less
impairment losses, if any, at balance sheet date because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates of the conversion
option component is so significant that the Directors are of the
opinion that their fair value of the entire instrument cannot be
measured reliably. Details are disclosed in note 18.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Managing Director of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), for the purposes of
resources allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on the types of goods delivered. Other than the revenue
analysis as set out in note 7(e), no operating results and other
discrete financial information relating to major products is prepared
regularly for internal reporting to the CODM for resources allocation
and performance assessment. The CODM reviews the financial
performance of pharmaceutical and biotechnology business as a
whole for allocating resources and assessing performance. In
addition, the CODM monitors the Group'’s assets and liabilities as a
whole, accordingly, no segment assets and liabilities are presented.

6.

SR TE(®)
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(@)

(b)

88 IEEEEEO

Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results.

7. WANRSEBER %)

(@) SRR HKE
T B AREBZ MNREENT o

2016 2015

HK$ HK$

BT 7S TT

REVENUE — EXTERNAL N\ - ShER 192,784,764 139,366,849
SEGMENT PROFIT (LOSS) SEREFI( IR ) 21,172,470 (16,632,368)
Other income HEWAN 5,110,938 6,172,014
Other gains and losses HelmREE 2,537,681 1,256,003
Unallocated expenses KB H (15,453,841) (13,811,935)
Profit (loss) for the year KEE A B ) 13,367,248 (23,016,286)

The accounting policies of the operating segment are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit (loss) after tax
earned by the segment without allocation of central
administration costs, directors’ salaries, certain other income,
and other gains and losses. This is the measure reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

&8 o0 =~ & 5T B S
Pt AR E > @5 BURAER o
53 80 A ( B5 48 ) 15 4 36 P Bk EX
ZBmERM(EE) RED
P RITBMA EEHS &
THEBRAUEREER @ EE
Bt ERNDERKFFTMEM
S RDOETESERKEZR
zstEH o
H

Other segment information (b) t = ERE L
2016
Pharmaceutical
and
biotechnology
business Unallocated Total
BuLMER KOE st
HK$ HK$ HK$
Amount included in the measure of STEN BN IERD
segment profit or loss or NEEES
segment assets A EE
Additions of property, plant and equipment KB ¥1% « BB K K1 3,926,657 138,527 4,065,184
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHH 11,687,796 - 11,687,796
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BERZENE
and equipment 8,998,740 403,034 9,401,774
Additions of prepaid lease payments ERREFRIEE 40,858,924 - 40,858,924
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8 £ 0 & 7R 1 # 3,380,797 - 3,380,797
Loss on disposaliwrite off of property, HE/HEVE  HHER
plant and equipment FEZER 432,693 2373 455,066
Write off of intangible assets B EEMH 17,281 - 17,281
Interest income FBHA 1,131,371 5,110,428 6,241,799
Investment income HEFAN 834,022 (807,270) 26,752
Income tax expense Fris®iE & 5,057,622 - 5,057,622
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)  Other segment information (continued)

7. WANESERER (%)
(b) EHeEs#Esl®)

2015
Pharmaceutical
and
biotechnology
business Unallocated Total
BELEMES RNE mat
HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT
Amount included in the measure of SrEA IR
segment profit or loss or BRI DEER
segment assets Az EE
Additions of property, plant and equipment 7R B 1% ~ 5 R 36,091,223 8,199 36,099,422
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 12,115,738 - 12,115,738
Depreciation of property, plant ¥ BEREBENE
and equipment 6,419,327 408,253 6,827,580
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments Y& TR & 1B #ESH 3,163,023 - 3,163,023
Loss on disposallwrite off of property, HE/MEDNE  BER
plant and equipment FEZER 2,874,385 - 2,874,385
Interest income FEBAN 3,544,656 6,157,023 9,701,679
[nvestment income - U ON - 853,229 853,229
Income tax credit FrERIES (1,245,389) - (1,245,389)

(c) Geographical information
The Group principally operates in the PRC (country of
domicile), Hong Kong and Australia.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
sales by geographical market based on the location of
operations irrespective of the origin of goods/services.

© HEFH

FEBTENPBR( LS
R )  FEARRKF ELS

E 7

T ERARR E T P A b R 1

AEBZRBEDSHA

A4 O
of 2 oo

BR¥% = AR )8 > 2 $HE 24T o
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c)  Geographical information (continued)

7. WANRSEBER %)

()

WEER E)

The Group’s revenue from external customers and AEBERENTFEFZYK
information about its non-current assets by geographical ANREBERMERES D IE
location of the assets are detailed below: mBEEERFIIOT

Revenue from Non-current

external customers assets

KREMBEFZEAN ERBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
The PRC (country of domicile) b KEMAEBRR ) 189,725,333 137,128,345 428,068,831 427,057,375
Hong Kong A 1,079,635 491,754 32,566,163 2,592,107
Australia R AF TR 1,979,796 1,746,750 8,498,694 9,077,453
192,784,764 139,366,849 469,133,688 438,726,935

(d)  Information about major customer (d HBEFEEZFZEHR
No major customer has been accounted for 10% or N ERESH I EAEA
more of the Group’s revenue for both reporting periods. FTERFE{LALEBU A10%E L
o
(¢)  Revenue from major products () FEERZWAN
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
BT I
Pharmaceutical, biotechnology and B2 ZE 4 #) & & & (R & &
healthcare products
— Cerebroprotein hydrolysate R EQKBRY
injection 57,602,903 5,241,790
— Tuoping (Valsartan capsules) - FEFE( BB E) 57,543,419 57,657,997
— Tuoen (Ibuprofen suspension - R B RBR BB )
and drops) 39,204,960 32,258,193
- Others -HE 38,433,482 44,208,869

192,784,764 139,366,849
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8(a).

OTHER INCOME

8(a). EEWMAN

2016 2015

HK$ HK$

&I AT

Interest income on bank deposits SRITHERF BUEA 6,241,799 9,701,679
Release of government grants in BB T EEEBBUTHEED

relation to certain assets (note 23) ( Pfts¥23) 122,684 261,682

Unconditional government grants (note) AR BUSHEE( BEEE ) 447,798 1,434,333

Others HE 369,490 1,037,669

7,181,771 12,435,363

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2016, a PRC subsidiary received an
amount of approximately HK$448,000 (2015: HK1,434,000) to recognise
the eminent brand of pharmaceutical and biotechnology products.

MfsE M E E2016F3ANBILEFERN — M
oh [ B B /A 5] U B3k T8 £9448,0007% JT
(20154 1 1,434,000 7 ) M k& B2z 4

WS ESRM o
. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8(b). ez R EE
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Exchange gain P& 5 U &1 3,361,621 399,354
Investment income from foreign SNEHNRILE Z R E RN
exchange linked investments 26,752 853,229
Loss on disposaliwrite off of property, HE /MEWE -~ BFER
plant and equipment Ba- P -] (455,066) (2,874,385)
Write off of intangible assets MEEmEEE (17,281) -
2,916,026 (1,621,802)

B 9
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9?2 EEEEEE0S

9.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) 9. FIEMZH(ER)
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
BIT BT

Current tax: RIHAFRIE -

PRC enterprise income tax th @ £ S 7,271,362 4,058,788
Withholding tax AR 3,755,082 -
11,026,444 4,058,788

Underprovision (overprovision) BEFEEETE

in prior years: (EBERAM )
PRC enterprise income tax hEERER 1,017,764 (932,058)
Deferred tax (note 25): IR AR IE( B 5E25 )
Current year KEE (6,986,586) (4,372,119)
5,057,622 (1,245,389)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is
not subject to any income tax.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years. No provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax has been made as the Group has no assessable profit arising in,
or derived from, Hong Kong for both years.

The tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group is 25%,
except Yunnan Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical Co., Limited (Meng
Sheng Pharmaceutical) and Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) Limited
(Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai)), subsidiaries of the Group.

Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical is established in the Kunming
economic development zone. Pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC, Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical is engaged in
Western China Development and was entitled to a preferential tax
rate of 15% for both years. Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) is
qualified as advanced technology enterprises and has obtained
approvals from the relevant tax authorities for the applicable tax rate
reduced to 15% for a period of 3 years up to 2016.

The corporate tax rate applicable to Tianda Pharmaceuticals
(Australia) Pty Ltd (Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia)), a subsidiary
of the Company established and operating in Australia, is 30% for
both years. No provision for the Australian income tax has been
provided as the Group had no taxable profit arising in Australia for
both years.

ARERFEEFESFEMM B
EABMNERPIER

RWEFERN  FEFSREG
5T SR B 7 A AR 16.5%5 & o At
AEBEMEFESTEESBELY
RKBEERZERBOGH - HI EAEH
BATNGHEE -

GAEBZHBASI ER R4 %
XARNT( BEEE \RRAKREE(HK
BIBRAS(RKEE(IKRE )
AEBDHKHB NS 2 REE2Y% o

RAEREENREPL KL EAM
S o RIBP BB AR R AR > R
GHEESRDETEIME > WX WE
FENZHBEEREISD RAEX
(KB )FEcaMRMEEEE  EBF
ERAMEHAAERAZRMEE[E
15%  REA=1F » HEE2016F R IE ©

RWEFER  BARKKEX
(RAFEE )HRAS( RREZE(EAKA
FER ) AN E) R ARF ALK
EBAS ) ZhERERIN% B
B 2 62 1B 75 W {8 £ 5 30 SR AR R KA TR
A B SRAUM A B 4 AE R K F
LRSI o
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (continued)

The income tax expense (credit) for both years can be
reconciled to the profit (loss) before tax per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:

FriemxH( KR @)

MEFEZMESRIH(KRE)
HGEHEARATE2BRER KRR
BB BE1E EERWT ¢

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
H T HIT

Brig e Al ( B8 )

Profit (loss) before tax

18,424,870 (24,261,675)

Tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March  #{ %= 20165 & 201538318

2016 and 2015 1L FEFRB% MK HE 2 1B 4,606,218 (6,065,419)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for MBBMS ATIHRXHZ

tax purpose MBHE 1,047,377 1,105,119
Tax effect of income not taxable for ARBMSHERREAZ

tax purpose MBGLE (2,138,432) (2,045,747)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRBERIRNBLE 4,371,900 8,276,629
Effect of tax concession grant to PRC BETHEB A

subsidiaries MEERZE (3,745,090) (857,714)
Under(over)provision in prior years BEFEBEENC(BEERS) 1,017,764 (932,058)
Withholding tax of income generated from BB AS EE WA

the PRC subsidiaries FEHORR 310,799 (717,880)
Others HE (412,914) (8,319)
Income tax expense (credit) for the year AEEFRBRMIH(ER) 5,057,622 (1,245,389)

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 25.

R SIE R TR 2 5 15 RS B 5525 ©
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10.  PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 10. RFEEHFI(EE)
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
T AT
Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived A& A ( B598 )EF0RR ¢
at after charging:
Directors’ emoluments (note 11) EEH S MsE11) 2,065,614 399,677
Other staff costs HEEBIMA
Salaries and other benefits FERHEEEF 30,823,601 31,741,857
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3B 1k #@ %1 51 8 {f 7% 4,272,337 3,840,998
Total staff costs (excluded staff costs ETHABEHEFABEFE
capitalised in inventories) BRIz ETITHA) 37,161,552 35,982,532
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TEfT AL & FRIE S 8 3,389,797 3,163,023
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEM B <& 1,803,932 1,457,362
Cost of inventories recognised as expense R A X H z FEM A
(including of amortisation of intangible (BIEEEEE#E
assets of HK$11,687,796 11,687,796 7T
(2015: HK$12,115,738)) (20154F : 12,115,7387& 7T ) ) 82,055,628 69,596,419
Depreciation of property, ME S BERZBITE
plant and equipment 9,401,774 6,827,580
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1.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and the
chief executive of the Company were as follows:

. #F=H-

BITHAEREEME

(@) EEREBITHASME
EXNHEBNEATES
RESITBRASMEWT :

Fang Lui Lam Chiu Chiu
Wen Shi Liu Man Shen Feng Yat Sung Fan
Quan* ~ Shaohin®  Huijiang* ~ Sang* Bo" Quanming? Fai®  Hong® Wa®  Total
AXE EOEY HEeR BExE R Bl KBRS BERS EnE 8%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
(Notea) ~ (Notea)  (Noteh) (Nofed) ~ (Notec)
(Wista) (Hsta)  (B5D) (Hz5d)  (Bise)
2016
Fees £e 60000 72000 5870 72000 4651 - 2000 72000 72000 525,281
Other emoluments £EHe
Salaries and other benefs ¥ RET
&l - 148334 - - - - - - - 148334
Retrement beneft BIRER
scheme confribuions 5B - 56989 - - - - - - - 56989
Total emoluments Hees 60000 1612333 5810 72000  465M - T2000  T2000 72000 2,065,614
Fang Lui Lam Chiy Chi
Wen Shi Liu Man Yat Sung Fan
Quan®  Shaobin*  Huifang’ Sang* Fai® Hong® Wat Total
FE g e B4 HERY  HER' #fE @y
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
D AT AT BT AT AT BT BT
(Noteg)
[ Bste)
2015
Fees we 60,000 361 60,000 69,000 69,000 69,000 69000 309677
Other emoluments £tie
Salaries and other benefis HeRAE
&l - - - - - - - -
Rerement beneit scheme JE N ER]
contrbuions SRR - - - - - - - -
Total emoluments Heos 60,000 361 60,000 69,000 69,000 69,000 69000 309677
* Executive directors * HIiTES
A Non-executive directors A JEHITEE
o Independent non-executive directors 0 BIIERITES
# Chief executive # fTBAER

BT 05
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11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were

mainly for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group, the non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as the Directors of the Company or its subsidiaries
whereas the independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as Directors.

Notes:

Mr. Fang Wen Quan has resigned as chief executive but remained
as an executive director of the Company on 3 August 2015. On the
same date, Mr. Shi Shaobin has been appointed and taken up the
role as chief executive of the Company.

Mr. Liu Huijiang has resigned as executive Director on 23 March
2016.

Mr. Feng Quanming has been appointed as a non-executive
Director on 23 March 2016.

Mr. Shen Bo has been appointed as a non-executive Director on
10 August 2015.

Mr. Shi Shaobin has been appointed as an executive Director on
13 March 2015.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during

the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.
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(@)

$ A Y
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&n

THEAEREEME

it

ERERERITHAESME(E)

g fTEEZMEEE

RMEREK RN RAEEBEHIR
HEERT WM L IFRTT
EEZMESAFERRSERRK
NEFHK B A S EERERSE
Z I M ERE S IFRITES
ZHETEAWEHFESRM
AR5 = $REA o

BT

(@)

75 SCHE S £ B R2015E8 B3 8 B
FTHERBYE  BBEAER
SlzHTEF AR EORE
EERFWHELEAT ZTH

2 & 525t £ 702016573 5238 BT
WITES o

B2 PEER016FIFBEES
ERFRITES

UK e 20158 B10B EE T
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11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, one (2015: nil) was a director of the Company
whose emolument is included in the disclosures in note (a)
above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2015: five)
individuals were as follows:

. EF -EETHAEREEMS

(#&)

(b)

EEME
FEBTEESMEALT
B —BAT(2015F & )R
KArSEE(KzMEENEX
BfsE(a) B ) o HEBR W B A L
(20156 H& )BT

2016 2015

HK$ HK$

BIT BT

Salaries and other benefits HerHETERF 3,009,909 4,140,908
Retirement benefits scheme RIRIEFEHEI K

contributions 92,692 35,000

3,102,601 4,175,908

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HEZHMETBRINTEHE:

2016 2015

No. of No. of

employees employees

EBE#HE RE#E

Nil to HK$1,000,000 27 78 %1,000,0007% 7T 4 4

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

1,000,001 7T %1,500,0007% 7T
1,500,001 7% 7T %2,000,0007 7T

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the Directors and five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

eSS Y B
ROEFRELESHIALE
HElS  BUEA BRSNS EE
SR NN 45 BB 2 SRS A
BER T o

T 97



Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£20162£3531 H 1 /&

12.  EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 12. SREA(EE)
The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share AN REEEGREREHE)
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following B THIRIE T IR E
data:
2016 2015
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings (loss) 2 (EE)
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of basic FrEESREART(BEE)
earnings (loss) per share FrizZ2F( EE) 6,568,591 (17,941,969)
Number of shares o e E
Number of ordinary shares in issue forthe ~ StESREARZ T KE )
purpose of basic earnings (loss) per share  FrfA = BT LB E 2,050,231,999 1,870,118,160
No diluted earnings (loss) per share is presented as the A AN S W B N9 AT
Company did not have any dilutive shares in issue during both years. AIEETEBBER KRN L #

2 EREERT(EE) -

13.  DIVIDENDS 13. B2
The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend EFZQRENALSREIRRMNE
of HK$5,806,717 (2015: Nil) (HK0.27 cent per share (2015: Nil)) for F2016F3AMBEFERERE
the year ended 31 March 2016 to the shareholders of the Company 5,806,7177 7 ( 20154F © &) (= B%0.2774
and is subject to the approval by the shareholders at Annual General fll(20154F « %) » ZBFRENRFBF
Meeting. Re#fE FEMRE-
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14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. W%~ MERRE

Furniture,
Plant and Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
Buildings machinery  improvements equipment vehicles i progress Total
HE HE %8
BF RERESE  WELE &L RE  ERIRE hE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
CosT A
At 1 April 2014 RANE4R1H 105,137,151 15,908,768 1,546,913 6,573,950 6489118 29536634 165,192,534
Exchange realignment ERHE 392,758 79,834 - (712,154) 16,189 80,542 506,169
Addtions hE - 1,572,126 - 480,978 553350 33492959 36099422
Disposalsfritten-off HeE/ M - 34078) - (3746640) (97843) (15922)  (1271139)
Transfer from (o) construction #BEa(F)
in progress TRIR 13038925 36,616,399 - 13140797 - (62796121) -
At 31 March 2015 and RBEIFNB
1 April 2015 RABEARIE 11856883 50,766,394 1546913 16,376,931 6,060,823 307,002 194,526,987
Exchange realignment ERHE (4911828 (2101181 - (551,392) (253,009) (1285)  (783025)
Additions e - 2447 449 56,938 648,086 - 92,711 4,065,184
Disposalsiwriten-off HE/ M - (2,343.862) - (755,403) (206,068) - (3,305,333)
Transfer from (to) construction BHa(%)
in progress TEIRE 626,597 36,106 - 239421 - (902,124) -
At 31 March 2016 RAMGEIANE 114283603 48,804,906 1,603,851 15,957,643 6,501,750 304827 187,456,580
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZiHE
At 1 April 2014 RAN14E4R1H 10,483,659 6,836,758 232,031 3451,853 2,961,182 - 23965489
Exchange realignment ERHE 39412 2878 - (25,860) 9545 - 47975
Provided for the year REERE 1,693,923 2815024 154,691 1,453,379 710,563 - 6,827,580
Eliminated on disposalsfwiten-off e/ MeHE - (301498)) - (1335,060) (21709) - AR
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RAOBEIRINB R
154518 12,216,994 6,661,677 386,728 3544312 3,659,581 - 2646929
Exchange realignment ERHE (533,191) (318,14) - (78,518) (142513) - (107233)
Provided for the year KEERG 1,932,032 4,650,895 156,589 2,122,560 539,698 - 9401774
Eliminated on disposalsfwritten-off & /WS - (1,710,665) - (641,178) (185,462) - (2,537,305)
At 31 March 2016 RA16E3A3H 13,615,835 9,263,793 543317 4947176 3,871,304 - R6145
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2016 RA6EIANME 100,667,768 30,521,113 1,060,534 11,010467 2,630,446 304821 155,195,155
At 31 March 2015 RAOBEIFNE 106351840 44104717 1160185 12832619 3301,242 307,002 168,057,695

The buildings, which are situated on leasehold land, are

located in the PRC.

MHELh 2 EFHMNPE -
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14.

15.

10 ISR

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

3% - 10%

5% - 10%

10% — 33.33% or the term
of the lease, if shorter
10% - 20%

Buildings
Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

14. V¥ -BEERZHE#)

Eidt s BmERREHEENE
AR TN IV E REHRINE ¢

B 3% —10%
B 5 B 4 28 5% —10%
HEYXEE 10% — 33.33%3,

FE S nEE )

RE S KERKE 10% — 20%

Motor vehicles 10% - 20% HE 10% — 20%

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15. FE{HERIE
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
BIT BT

Prepaid lease payments for medium-term UM Bz P HIEE i
leasehold land in the PRC: FEMTFRE A

Included in current assets BENTEBEEN 3,839,469 3,165,017
Included in non-current assets BENEREBEEN 117,379,136 84,763,880
121,218,605 87,928,897

During the current year, Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai)
acquired the land use right of a piece of land in Zhuhai City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC at a consideration (included stamp
duties) of RMB33,304,109 (equivalent to approximately
HK$40,858,924). The Group intends to establish new facilities on the
land, which will be used for research, production and sales for the
pharmaceutical, biotechnology and healthcare business of the Group.

MAFERE » RREX(KE )WE
UARPEEREHKEDHN—ELHH
T AR RE(BEBHER)AA
ER 33,304,100 7T ( #9748 & 740,858,924 7%
T)e AEEENZE LM ERZRH
wht o IR EAEEBELEYRRK
REEBZHAR - EERHEERE
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16.  GOODWILL 16. HE
Goodwill is allocated to the following CGUs: BMESRETIREEEEN
Meng Tianda Tianda
Sheng Pharmaceuticals Pharmaceuticals
Pharmaceutical (Australia) (Zhuhai) Total
RREEZE RREEZE
B (EXFEE ) (Zkig ) “azE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
COST )W
At 1 April 2014 R20145E4 A1 H 6,674,893 2,555,867 102,387,438 111,618,198
Exchange realignment BE 5 % 24,413 (416,112) 388,990 (2,709)
At 31 March 2015 and #°20155F3 8318
1 April 2015 &2015F4818 6,699,306 2,139,755 102,776,428 111,615,489
Exchange realignment PE 53 & (277,012) 1,778 (4,413,788) (4,689,022)
At 31 March 2016 #R2016£E3H31H 6,422,294 2,141,533 98,362,640 106,926,467
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill as at 31 B B 7220169 & 20155383180 =
March 2016 and 2015 are disclosed in note 34. REBEA R SR i34 5 o
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17.

12 IS EETEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BEREE
Licenses
Trademark and permits Total
HK$ HK$ HK$
HiE BERRFFAE “mst
BT BT BT
COST A
At 1 April 2014 720144818 6,616,786 98,432,731 105,049,517
Exchange realignment PE 52 (1,080,799) (74,594) (1,155,393)
Additions NE 21,516 25,263 46,779
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 201553831 H &
20154818 5,557,503 98,383,400 103,940,903
Exchange realignment PE & 4,182 (3,975,772 (3,971,590)
Additions NE 6,426 395,600 402,026
Written-off s (14,365) (3,998) (18,363)
At 31 March 2016 72016423 H31H 5,553,746 94,799,230 100,352,976
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION RETH#H
At 1 April 2014 72014 F4 818 - 18,888,242 18,888,242
Exchange realignment PE 5 & - (102,601) (102,601)
Provided for the year REFREME - 12,115,738 12,115,738
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 20153831 H &
2015F4 818 - 30,901,379 30,901,379
Exchange realignment PE & - (1,371,746) (1,371,746)
Provided for the year KEFEE - 11,687,796 11,687,796
Eliminated on written-off T B B - (1,082) (1,082)
At 31 March 2016 #R20165E3H31H - 41,216,347 41,216,347
CARRYING VALUE BRE1E
At 31 March 2016 #20165£3H31H 5,553,746 53,582,883 59,136,629
At 31 March 2015 72015838318 5,557,503 67,482,021 73,039,524




Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ErETERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 £ 220165£3/531 H 1 /&

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17. BEREEH)
Intangible assets are allocated to the following CGUs: BREEENRETIHECELSE
7
Trademark Licenses and permits Total
[ HRRFFAHE s
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Tianda Pharmaceuticals RREL( %G )
(Zhuhai) - - 52,561,023 66,370,893 52,561,023 66,370,893
Tianda Pharmaceuticals RREL(BRAFE )
(Australia) 5,553,746  5557,503 1,021,860 1,111,128 6,575,606 6,668,631
5,553,746  5557,503 53,582,883 67482021 59,136,629 73,039,524

Particulars regarding impairment testing on intangible assets
as at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are disclosed in note 34.

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) has obtained medicine
production licenses and permits that used to manufacture and sell the
medicine and drugs. The licenses and permits are granted by
Guangdong Food and Medicine Supervision and Administration
Bureau and subject to renewal every 5 years without significant cost.
Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of the licenses and
permits using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of
the licenses and permits of 8 years.

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia) has obtained permits that
used to manufacture and sell the healthcare products. The permits
are granted by Therapeutic Goods Administration, Australia and
subject to renewal every year without significant cost. Amortisation is
provided to write off the cost of permits using the straight line method
over the estimated useful life of permits of 5 years.

The trademark included several brand names held by Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Australia) which allow the Group to produce
products under those brand names. The trademark is treated as
having indefinite useful life because it is expected to contribute to net
cash inflows to the Group indefinitely. Therefore, it is not amortised
until its useful life is determined to be finite.

H B 72016 K& 201538318 =
BT B ERUE R R = S R M EE348%

5o

RREE(KB)EMEGHANR
ERIHEENRELRZ EmEERR
RADTE - HREFITEDERER
GELEEEERME > ABLFE
B BHAXMNERER - #HiHEE
TRRBRBRFIEZMASTIEAE
HNERERAEREMBERBRIT

A o

RAREZE(RRMEE)

EEEH

NEERBERBERZHTE o F
o] 25 | R K F EETherapeutic Goods
Administrationftt tf » ZEIR FEHY 0 HEH
AXNBERER HMEBENRNEG
UEFIERERLIEFRNERE

ARORMEHST T A ©

BIEBERARNEE(RAF D)
FAEZzZEQMERE  BAEETIL
ZEDBEBEEED c BNHEE
STUERBMAAEEERE SR
FER RS R B EROIEAE o
Bt BrIFEEHTERFHAR

TGRSR T DU o

EEE (0
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18.

17 EEEEETNE

INVESTMENTS IN REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE
PREFERENCE SHARES

18. HENAIEEATHRRELER

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Series C Preference Shares in ASLAN ASLAN Pharmaceuticals Limited
Pharmaceuticals Limited (ASLAN) (ASLAN) B CER 18 5t AR 30,072,784 -

On 1 December 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an investment agreement to subscribe for
2,058,942 Series C Convertible Preference Shares of ASLAN
Pharmaceuticals Limited (the ASLAN Preference Shares), a company
incorporated in Singapore, with an aggregate investment cost of
US$3,870,811, equivalent to HK$30,072,784 (2015: nil). The investee
is principally engaged in an oncology focused biotechnology and
developing a portfolio of immunotherapies and targeted drugs,
focusing on Asia prevalent tumour types. It has developed several
oncology focused drugs and one of the major drugs is currently under
new drug application process Phase 2a which governed by the Food
and Drug Administration in the United States.

The ASLAN Preference Shares are convertible into ordinary
shares of ASLAN either (i) at the option of the Company, subject to
the approval by the directors of ASLAN and (ii) will be automatically
converted into ordinary shares of ASLAN upon listing of ASLAN on a
recognised stock exchange which values ASLAN with a market
capitalisation of at least a certain specified amount. The ASLAN
Preference Shares are redeemable by the Company after 27
November 2021 at 100% repayable and will bear interest at 8% per
annum from 1 December 2015 to the date of redemption.

The fair value estimates of the conversion option component is
correlated with the unquoted equity instrument of which the fair value
cannot be reliably measured, thus, such conversion option cannot be
reliably measured and the entire investment is treated as held for
trading. Further, the Directors are of the opinion that the equity
component of the investment is significant and accordingly, such held
for trading investment is measured at cost less impairment, if any.

R2015F12818 » KA HEE
Bt B /A 5 57 3L % & 1 3 DA SE BEASLAN
Pharmaceuticals Limited( 7% 37 h0 4 25 7 A%
3L 89 /A 5] ) 892,058,942F% C o 3R iz 18
JeB%( ASLANESCRR ) » BB AR
3,870,8113% Jr » #8 & 730,072,784 7t
(20156 : ) o WHREHETEZHFN
TNSBZEE  HEREEREE
SEHUEEY 2 £ MR A S o ASLAN
EEHZEEEMENEY  B—
BIrEEYBENEERSERE
BEIE DA ZE R 552aPEER o

ASLANTE 9t B%(i)o] H1 4 /A 5] - 42
B8 8 BASLAN i B » 1 ZB 1FASLANE
EHE R (i) A5 FASLANR SR T 355532 5
Ffr & % B 8) 8 2 BASLANE & B
Mm% & 5 X 5 Frfd 8 ZASLANT 8 1~
D E £ %8 o ASLANE & iR o] (A&
AB)FR2021FE1MB2TH B BEE > 3%100%
B WA B2015E12B1BHEEEEZE
B 5 88 1F 3% FF F8%ET 2 o

BRI 02 EENGETHEIE
EHBRATAEFR MIFELHRAT
BHNRABEELTEE At
HRBREE LTSS B2E
BWRIERFERF o Lo ESERAR
HERENRERT 2 TAER B
B ER 2R EZMABURE( 10
HI)stE-
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18.

19.

20.

INVESTMENTS IN REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE 18. IENRELIRRELR &)
PREFERENCE SHARES (continued)

The Directors are of the opinion that carrying amount of the EREWILE F RN EE T
investment is approximate to the amount on initial recognition date as EAXZHEE ESRAEHIKLE
considering no significant transactions or activities conducted by the FIRRTEEIRY SRR B BN SEREE o
investee during the period. Accordingly, no impairment indicators has tt > Bt IR E IR 2R E T
been identified on the investment, and no impairment loss has been R INREESRBEEE o
recognised.

Pursuant to a resolution passed in an extraordinary 1R #RASLANAR2016 -5 527 B £ 17
shareholders’ meeting of ASLAN held on 27 May 2016, all the ASLAN ZEREFHNAGIBEBARER X
Preference Shares held by the Group have been converted into S EFENFTBASLANGE & ik BB
ordinary shares of ASLAN. FASLANE 38 i o
INVENTORIES 19. #&

2016 2015

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Raw materials ERVERS 9,682,824 14,583,718
Work in progress R 6,351,499 9,063,967
Finished goods SR & 25,646,772 14,936,343
41,681,095 38,584,028

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 20. BEWERZEREKEEREEREK

RECEIVABLES

EAN

2016 2015

HK$ HK$

#IT BT

Trade and bills receivables e U BR FR R B U = i 42,331,007 47 562,508

Prepayments to suppliers o] 4t fE B TR 3R 1B 472,776 509,273
Other receivables, deposits HEERWR  RERTEMNKE

and prepayments 4,409,721 7,202,349

47,213,504 55,274,130

EEE (5
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20.

1060 IEEEETEE

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group allows average credit periods ranging from 60 to
180 days to its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of
trade and bills receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

20.

BUERAEEREEREERK

ENE D)

AEBLST N FOE80K T %
ZEEERTHEZFEF - UTA
RIRE E B AT 2 50 & UUR R & UL
SR CIRRREE INREH R
SREC AT

2016 2015

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within 60 days 60X N 21,286,957 19,670,279
61 - 90 days 612 90K 5,995,274 7,463,637
Over 90 days FEBEI PN 15,048,776 20,428,592
42,331,007 47,562,508

Included in the carrying value of trade and bills receivables as
at 31 March 2016 is bills receivables of HK$27,264,979 (2015:
HK$33,768,397).

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer's credit quality and defines credit limits of each
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a year.
All of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
have good credit quality assessed by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables balance are
debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$202,926 (2015:
HK$3,457,995) which are past due as at the reporting date for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and amounts are still considered
recoverable based on historical experience.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The average age of these receivables is as follows:

2016538318 > BUER A K &
I 2 45 < BR T B B 45 4 #027,264 9797
JC Z & Ut Z R ( 20154F © 33,768,397
JT)e

REMTEEHEF  A5HE
REBEEEFPZEEFRETHMGE I
REBNEFZEERE -BFIT=E
ZRESBERT — R iEREH
TRARIBE < B U IR SR 8 A SR B s G
REBEREFEEFR o

A& E = E R TR B U E iR 4
88 6 15 BR T 18 & £202,9267 7T ( 2015
3457995 0 ) E NS B E @
HrERRBE HNEEERTES
A BRBBELEBBERRIENH
WAETYWE » Fitt » KEB I EH X
L IRIE (R RE B TR o

FEETERZSERTHEN
AP o o ZFE WAR K < I AR EE 10
T
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

2. BUESXREEZEEREEEK

ENE

180 H 1 R BB 2 R AR K 2 AR

2016 2015

HK$ HK$

BT BT

61-90 days 61290k 69,333 1,532,768
Over 90 days FHIB0K 133,593 1,925,227
202,926 3,457,995

The Group’s trade and bills receivables and other receivables
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities are set out below:

AEENEEEEREER
Sz BT SI{E = I W AR TR R B U
BRAETCEBYREINWT

2016 2015

HK$ HK$

# T AT

HK$ AT 413,906 270,264

21. BANK DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank deposits, which comprise short-term fixed deposits
with original maturity of 1 to 3 months (2015: 1 to 3 months), carry
market interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 4.30% (2015: 0.26% to
3.43%) per annum.

Bank balances carry variable interest at market rates which
range from 0.01% to 0.35% (2015: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.

The Group’s bank deposits, bank balances and cash that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities are set out below:

2. S|ITER-RITERERS

BOFEXRBERIABER—ZE
—@ER(2015F : —2=EF ) zEH
EPEH)BEDHENENF001%E
4.30%( 20154F : 0.26%%E3.43% )51 2 ©

R 17 45 88 1% 1 F0.01% £ 0.35%
( 20154F : 0.01%%E0.35% )= 71533 B
FEFTR o

AEBNREEEE L
Moz BEHETME 2 RITFER -~ RIT4
BEEEFEINWT !

2016 2015

HK$ HKS

T BT

HK$ BT 123,321,776 9,234,213
us$ e 313,747 676
EUR BX T 8,119 8,075
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22.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22, BEMAEBRAREEEMNK
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade payables JEATBR X 16,359,909 19,904,712
Deposits received from customers BEFRI %S 4,158,463 12,739,631
Value added tax and other tax payables EfEEREETREMARIE 3,030,103 2,129,939
Other payables and accrued staff costs HEEEAARESTEIMA 41,578,448 47,980,688
65,126,923 82,754,970
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 to 90 BETHEEHNF60XKEN
days. The aging analysis of trade payables presented is based on the RoMMEPR > AEBHIREFEEE
invoice date at the end of the reporting period. The following is an HEAZ S ARFRARE < 04T o IR
analysis of the Group’s trade payables at the end of the reporting AAREBZEMERNESHERZ S
period: #r
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within 60 days 60K N 6,448,290 7,688,100
61-90 days 61ZF 90X 3,947,367 3,192,095
Over 90 days FEBELIEN 5,964,252 9,024,517
16,359,909 19,904,712
Included in the trade payables at 31 March 2016, 20163 H318 Z FE A BRFK op »

HK$7,201,064 (2015: HK$8,508,436) has been paid by endorsed bills 7,201,064 7T ( 20154 : 8,508,436 7T )
for which the maturity date has not yet fallen due as at 31 March T3 ARR2016FE3 A3 B A B T EE

2016 (see note 29). BRI RMEE29) o
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23.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 23. BIFTHE BN
HK$
AT
At 1 April 2014 720144818 208,534
Exchange realignment PE & 1,393
Additions #4 0 1,260,398
Credited to profit or loss ST (261,682)
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 7R2015FE3H31H &
20155F4 518 1,208,643
Exchange realignment B H g (48,197)
Credited to profit or loss sTAE @ (122,684)
At 31 March 2016 72016E3 A 31H 1,037,762
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEMEHZ 2T
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
BT I
Current liabilities* mE 8B 120,904 126,119
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 916,858 1,082,524
1,037,762 1,208,643

The carrying amount of the government grants which is expected to be

released to profit or loss in the next twelve months is classified as current.

Note: Grants were designated for the cost of acquisition of certain plant and
equipment for the production of pharmaceutical and biotechnology
products and were deferred and are released to income on a straight-line

basis over the expected useful lives of the related assets.

* R ARET ZERRBABT B
WPz REOEEHERREES o

Bist: MBI HisE AR NEERELY
ERM&EzETHEREEZNAE
I 2RI R 5 H RS E 2 TER A AR
FHRBEREBALRNA ©
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24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, BRAK
Number
of shares Amount
B E B -]
HK$
&I
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREEN0E T B
Authorised: ERE
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 720144818 ~ 2015F &
and 2016 201638318 4,000,000,000 400,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRHE
At 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 720144818 ~ 201553 831H 1,870,118,160 187,011,816
Issue of new shares upon subscription OB EITIT AR FIET)
(note) 280,517,724 28,051,772
At 31 March 2016 72016E3 A 31H 2,150,635,884 215,063,588
Note:  On 20 July 2015, the Company entered into the subscription agreement BsE © R20155E7B208 » A /2 5] 1 —RE
with the sole subscriber for the subscription of an aggregate 280,517,724 AFTALRERE NEHRZERES
new shares for an aggregate consideration of HK$109,401,912 at the FERIBERMIOE TIRESH
subscription price of HK$0.39 per subscription share. The subscription was 280,517,724 5 B » B RE A
completed on 10 August 2015. 109,401,912 7T o 58 B8 &5 16 £ 1201548
B10B 5/ ©
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25. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

25 BRERIEEBMG

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised KEERNFFERTDETER

and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

HEMBEBERASHWT

Fair value Withholding
adjustment tax on
of property, Prepaid distributable
plant and lease Intangible profit of
equipment payments assets  subsidiaries Total
R il=pNG|
BERREZ Rt A 5
NoEERE HENE 2 EREE  IEIR k)
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2014 N2014E4 518 4,043,431 14,644,038 21,846,045 4701908 45235422
Exchange realignment PE MR 14,698 53,233 (315,267) - (247,336)
Credit to profit or loss FERHENETA (142,721) (516,892)  (2,994,626) (717,880)  (4,372,119)
At 31 March 2015 and RR2015E3F3H K&

1 April 2015 201554818 3,915,408 14,180,379 18,536,152 3,984,028 40,615,967
Exchange realignment b 5 A 2 (159,883) (579,048) (648,851) - (1,387,782)
(Credit) charge to profit or loss TERRHA( A )HBR (138,922 (503,131)  (2,900,250) 310,799 (3,231,504)
Release to profit or loss upon RERREIRE

utilisation of withholding tax BOZEEH - - - (3,755,082)  (3,755,082)
At 31 March 2016 #20165£3A31H 3,616,603 13,098,200 14,987,051 539,745 32,241,599

The Group’s subsidiaries that are tax resident in the PRC are
subject to the PRC dividend withholding tax of 10% for those non-
PRC resident immediate holding company registered in the British
Virgin Islands, when and if undistributed earnings are declared to be
paid as dividends out of profits that arose on or after 1 January 2008.
Accordingly, a provision for deferred taxation in respect of withholding
tax on undistributed earnings of approximately HK$5,397,000 (2015:
HK$38,344,000) has been recognised for the year ended 31 March
2016.

At 31 March 2016, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$280,892,000 (2015: HK$263,404,000) available to
offset against future profits. Included in unrecognised tax losses are
losses of approximately HK$1,723,000 (2015: HK$10,022,000) would
be expired in 2019. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the unused
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

RPBEEELASIZAEENEBEL
SEREBERASEMZIFEP
HEEHEEERERASERRDIREF
&S T A B R S 75 820081 31
Bz BES Z#H hEE o BIZATA
$010% = P BB S TEI0RR o Btk » 7EK
F2016F383MB L FEERRDIRE
H = 78 ¥0 % 5 3% 435,397,000 7T ( 2015
T 1 38,344,000 TT ) Z IR FEFR IR HE 5 o

20163 H31H » REBT AR
T RIHEF =z kB AREEEOAE
280,892,0005% 7T ( 20154F : 263,404,0007
I ) o K HE SR R 18 K5 18 o A 491,723,000
# T ( 20154 10,022,000 ) #% #:20194F
FH HEERITERPEE BN
HDFER R A A B I E K
FARIBEEERRRIERIBEELE o
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26. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 26.

12 Il

The Group’s Hong Kong subsidiaries operate a Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the MPF Scheme) for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contribution are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll
costs to the MPF Scheme up to a maximum contribution of HK$1,500
(HK$1,250 before June 2014) per employee monthly, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$245,226 (2015:
HK$234,343) represents contributions paid to the MPF Scheme by
the Group in respect of the current year.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions. For
the year ended 31 March 2016, the total cost charged to profit or loss
of HK$2,881,830 (2015: HK$2,994,530) represents contributions paid
to the state-managed retirement benefit scheme by the Group in
respect of the current year.

1R R fE I 5t &l

FEEZFTENBRIAHEE
12 EBH M AES RGBT FTEI( 1R
BEETE )z RERLBESETE -
HEREERLAF S X -G OLLHE
o WAERFRE ST E 4R B E A
Br B R W HIBR o

BEESHECEERAERBZE
ENRER THBAIEERTEE
AEEZREREHRNENS TRESS
HNE2HES -AKHEMBEETE
EH B REH A A 5K MRS
B 551,500 TT ( 5220146 3 BT &
1,2507% 7T ) &% L BR » B & =~ it k48
F o

TR 7 N H0 B = 48 A ZK245,2267
TC( 20154F © 234,3433# 7T ) ¥ A &= E b
AEEORBESTBHM Ko

AEBZzTHBASIZEES
oh B B 4 > B X B R K AE A BT
BB o ZEMBASIAKBFEMN
Az HET D ERKEHHEEL
R ARTIREES - AEEHR
KiEF Bz —STAMEHIEEZ
Ko HE216FE3B3MB L FF » B
B NI Bz 8k A2,881,8307 T
( 20154F : 2,994,5303# 7 )i R EE R &
FEBEREERKENHESAN =
:lij—*fﬂo
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27. OPERATING LEASE

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases in
respect of office premises during the year amounted to HK$3,711,644
(2015: HK$4,610,246).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

27.

rEmEs

AEEEARABAN

FARBEEHAR B AETYE
¥z &K E FKIE A3,711,64478 7T
(20154F : 4,610,246 7T ) ©

RIWEHR » REBER T T
ZREBHNATMNZ RERERBEEK

leases which fall due as follows: EREZFEBWT
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —FR 3,574,560 3,574,560
In the second to fifth year inclusive MEELFRNBIEEERE) 2,728,965 6,303,525
6,303,525 9,878,085

Operating leases are negotiated for an average term of 3 years
and rentals are fixed over the relevant lease term.

HEMNEER R TFIFHS
3FEMAEESNEREARNERERE
T o

28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. BARKIE
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Capital expenditure in respect of the B EFTHNBE AN
acquisition of property, plant and GEMBRRERGZ
equipment contracted for but not provided IS BE# 3 ~ B K&
in the consolidated financial statements R EERAMAX 595,454 972,475
Capital expenditure in respect of the REREEHRITNZ
acquisition of the land use right kg + AR
authorised but not contracted for BEARMX = 40,417,608
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29.

30.

114

TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 29, EESRNEE
As at 31 March 2016, the Group has bills receivables of R2016FE3H31E » AEEE 2T
HK$7,201,064 (2015: HK$8,508,436) that were transferred to EREEFZLEEERKEZEMEET
suppliers by endorsing those receivables on a full recourse basis. As HER B U Z & 457,201,064 T
the Group has not transferred the significant risks and rewards (20154 : 8,508,4367 L ) c HIN AKEE
relating to these receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying WHREZHZSENAREFHEZEX
amount of the bill receivables and trade payables. These financial E bR B3R e e EREERE
assets are carried at amortised cost in the Group’s consolidated ZRREMRAZIROE ZEEH
statement of financial position. BERBHENANEAEBZ GEMH

AR R BR ©
Bills receivables
endorsed to suppliers
with full recourse
EtEEEEIEE
SHEREZERER
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Carrying amount of bills receivables fE W =4k < BR A 7,201,064 8,508,436
Carrying amount of trade payables ENRMRZIREE (7,201,064) (8,508,436)
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 30. EERRHESHE

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme (the Scheme)
adopted on 13 July 2010 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees, the directors and
employees of the Company may, at the discretion of the Company’s
directors, be granted options (the Options) to subscribe for shares in
the Company (the Shares) at a price determined by its directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of a Share as
stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (jii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which Options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, and the number of shares
in respect of which Options may be granted to any individual in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time.

R A /A 5] 5220105E7 B 138 :]R 4y
z Bt EI( Z5TE ) 28z
ZENRMEFREEKESIRME
B> AASESFTRNEEOAAIES
REERTHRE(BRE)  IRAK
REEEHEE Z BEBEARALS KN
(ZSEmkH ) Bl BEEETEER)
ZERONFEL B PERMIAEL 5
BIRERPTR WS B ()ZERH
REBEEERH BRI AEEEBERT
PRtz B HRERAKRFWH
8 RijZzBEmnrzt B fHzaE=
ExmReE o

RERNSPRRE LAz » 1RIF
B TR  ERER S R BHD
WY AEBIB AN NIEEBD S %
TERMHZI0% MR ET—FEEAT
A TR BERER S &2 &
MEE  THEBBALQINELEFHE
EBTRMNZ1% o
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30.

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years from
the date of its adoption. Options granted must be taken up not later
than 30 days after the date of grant. A consideration of HK$1 is
payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of an Option. An Option is
exercisable on the date when the offer for the grant of Options is
made but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date
of grant of the Options.

No Options have been granted since the adoption of the
Scheme.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a)  Amount due to a related company

30.

31.

BERRHERTE (&)

ZETEERRMERAETFERNE
o iRtz B MRN8 E
BIRAER - EMRLBREEZSR
RSB TIERNRE - BRETR
BERUBREDRTE  BREM
BATARNBRERHBHETER
Tl o

BBzt B IR WARRBE
fo B A A o

BE ALK 5E

() EM—EEQRRE

2016 2015

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Trade balances B o4tk 1,323,935 1,355,935

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s amount due to a
related company, which is a fellow subsidiary of the Company,
is trading in nature, arising from purchase of packaging
materials for pharmaceuticals and biotechnological products.
The whole amount as at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are aged
within 90 days. The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing
and with credit term within 90 days.

R2016E3H31H » K& H
ZEMN—EEEAS(AKAT
ZERMBLAS )HNEBE M
g WHREEEBZEALAYELRZE
25 0L T & A o 720164 R2015
FIFME » BEKIBZ IREE A0
AW o ZRIBEAEIRE - Rt
RHENR = EEH o
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31.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

M. BAEALHEZE)

(b) During the year, the Group entered into the following (b) AEBRAKEENERENTE
transactions with related companies: MEZZWT .
Name of related company Notes Nature of transactions 2016 2015
FAE AR & TE B &E Z5HE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Zhuhai S.E.Z. Cheng Cheng Printing (i) Purchases 3,625,132 4,284,342
Co. Ltd. (Cheng Cheng)
BRI K B AL T BB
BIRAS( AL )
Cheng Cheng (Hong Kong) Limited (i) Sale of plant and equipment - 25,000
BAENTE( FHE )FRAE & 55 R 3k
EmMHEEYRMERAS (i) Sales supportive expenses 963,509 -
(ErmHE) HEXEX M
ErgFIGE (iv) Technical service fees 2,382,220 -
7 filg BR 7% &
Notes: Bfat

(il

(i)

()

The amount represents purchases of packaging and printing
products from Cheng Cheng, a fellow subsidiary of the Company.

The amount in prior year represented sale of motor vehicle with a
carrying value of approximately HK$18,000 to Cheng Cheng (Hong
Kong) Limited, a fellow subsidiary of the Company, at a
consideration of HK$25,000.

The amount represents sales services expenses payable to =g
FI5%, a non-controlling shareholder of Meng Sheng
Pharmaceutical, for the provision of sale-supportive and
consultancy services.

The amount represents an one-off fee paid to ErgF| 5 for its
provision technical services during the application of the New GMP
Version certificate

(i

(i)

()

ZEFIEEHN AL ZFERKE A
5 EEBKNRERD -

E—FE = S5 MK E25,000/ T m
AN FE)ERAIARI M
R/ 5] ) 6 AR T {8 4918,0003 T
ZRHE o

ZERIE RN BEEENIE
B R IR EH & B R BRI BRI B
ZHERB X o

% % 88 5t B A 56 50 P 55 3T hRGMP
HERMRMRE AR
#H o
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31.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

M. BAEALHEZE)

(c) FEEBAEMS

The remunerations of Directors and other members of EEREETEEEAE

key management during the year are as follows: RERNZFHEWT :
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Short-term benefits 52 HAIEF 3,392,774 3,940,585
Post-employment benefits R R1E 7 149,371 17,500
3,542,145 3,958,085

The remunerations of key management, including
Directors, were determined by reference to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

32.  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

TREHAE(BEESE)
ZHHMB2REARTRT SIS
BT o

32. ARBZMEBRIR

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
BT BT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Plant and equipment ¥R 5 R Bk A 1,772,430 2,089,246
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE st Bf /B8 /N 51 FRIB 194,757,548 187,404,091
Investments in subsidiaries REB AT 2% E 286,683,449 245,673,095
483,213,427 435,166,432

CURRENT ASSETS MENE E
Deposits and other receivables BEeREEERK 1,805,886 1,568,123
Bank deposits, bank balances and cash BITHEAR - RITESRERES 314,076,955 233,991,365
315,882,841 235,559,488
CURRENT LIABILITIES mBEE

Other payables HERAMRK 3,769,682 3,563,609
Amount due to a subsidiary J& 5 — 8 B /BB /A 5] 5K 1E 7,528,040 11,691,599
11,297,722 15,255,208
NET CURRENT ASSETS MAEERE 304,585,119 220,304,280
NET ASSETS BEFE 787,798,546 655,470,712

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRREE
Share capital (note 24) B A ( Bffs¥24 ) 215,063,588 187,011,816
Reserves (note) e KisE) 572,734,958 468,458,896
TOTAL EQUITY AT 787,798,546 655,470,712
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32.

118 IS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

32. ApABEZEBERAERE)

(continued)
Note: BfaT
Capital Capital
Share redemption contribution Exchange  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
N =
B ifE FE Bl 5 HREEE E R fE REHEF st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2014 201454 B1H 257,839,900 8,000 105,239,603 (270,142) 106,305,917 469,123,278
Profit for the year REERF - - - - 2,956,711 2,956,711
Exchange difference REEEZ
arising on translation EHER - - - 867,191 - 867,191
Total comprehensive income ~ AFEE 2T i
for the year AR - - - 867,191 2,956,711 3,823,902
Dividend recognised HRB PR KL
as distribution - - - - (4488284)  (4,488,284)
At 31 March 2015 7201553 H31H 257,839,900 8,000 105,239,603 597,049 104,774,344 468,458,896
Profit for the year A A - - - - 35,021,808 35,021,808
Exchange difference BREEE Y
arising on translation PE 5 %8 - - - (11,972,794) - (11,972,794
Total comprehensive income ~ AFEFE 2T
(expense) for the year (X )45 - - - (11,972,794) 35,021,808 23,049,014
Issue of shares upon BB THR
subscription (note 24) (PHzF24) 81,350,140 - - - - 81,350,140
Transaction costs attributable to %7727 IR E 15
issue of new shares T HMAE (123,092) - - - - (123,092)
At 31 March 2016 #R20165E3831H 339,066,948 8,000 105,239,603 (11,375,745) 139,796,152 572,734,958
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33.  PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

A

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 A.
March 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

33. FEMBRAZFHE

AR E) = B M B A S 2016 K

20153831 B 2 H15WTF :

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary  Proportion of nominal value of issued ~ Proportion of
registration and share capitall ordinary share capitallregistered  voting power held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital capital held by the Company by the Company  Principal activities
AL,/ BEITRAE
AR LERE/  ARAFRCEGLERE  AREME
HWELARER BEME YN HiE /R ERLE) HEL DA I
Directly Indirectly
B EE3
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
% % % % % %
Meng Sheng PRC RMB36,000,000 - - 55 55 55 55 Research, development,
Pharmaceutical® manufacture and sales of
pharmaceutical and
biotechnology products
BeEs PE ARE BELYER IR B
36,000,000 B HEREE
Yunyu Bio-Pharmaceutical British Virgin Us§t 100 100 - - 100 100  Investment holding
Company Limited Islands/
Hong Kong
RELER E REER
Bs/
i
Tianda Pharmaceuticals PRC RMB160,000,000 - - 100 100 100 100  Research, development,
(Zhuhai)™* manufacture and sales of
pharmaceutical and
biotechnology products
RREE (3%8) " hE ARE BELYERZRR F
160,000,000 B HEREE
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Australia AU$1,000,000 - - 100 100 100 100  Marketing, sales and
(Australia) distribution of healthcare
products
FREEZ (RAFE)  BARD 1 00000052 REESIHE HER
k"
Tianda Pharmaceuticals PRC HK$50,000,000 - - 100 100 100 100 Research and development of
(China) Limited pharmaceutical products,
provision of intra-group
consultation service
marketing sales and
distributable of healthcare
products
RREE (PE ) BRAT PE 50,000,000 T BEEQHRRER

*

ok

Company incorporated as cooperative enterprise.

Company established as foreign invested limited liability company.

*

*k

SEEENTSY
BEMNRRREL
GEN Ty

UEERERAMILZ AF o

B RINEBREE N AT ©
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33.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

A

120 IS EETEE

3B. FEMBARZFHEE)

(continued) A (#&)

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of ESRARILFFEHRB L
the particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length SzHEesEBRERNBRT
and therefore the above list contains only those subsidiaries Rk FRAFIEBTEH K
which principally affect the results or assets and liabilities of EBXESEEREBEREEAY
the Group. BB o

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities RS B RS F N FEATEF
at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the B MEMB LS BTEMERE
year. EH o
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that have material B. H#AEEXRIEREHRZIEELEMH
non-controlling interest BARZ#E

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRITFEEERFEERRK
subsidiary of the Group that have material non-controlling BHzAEEBE2ENBAT
interest: E3

Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interests and voting Profit (loss)
and principal rights held by allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary ~place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
At 1 B Sz 3 B EREGTFEGTE SEREFER
i) =PNCEA REIFEEME  HmERTEL Rz iRl BE) EREZaE 3
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
BT BT BT B
Meng Sheng PRC
Pharmaceutical
BEEY ':F‘ 45% 45% 6,798,657 (5,074,317 32,985,468 59,064,188

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s subsidiary that has material non-controlling interest is
set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

THEAEERERRE R
ZREEWEA S < B E R
ZHIWT o TXHBERBRE
FERENMHEEI <S8 o
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 3. TEMBLAAIZFHEE)
B.  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that have material B. #AEXREERERZIEELEMH
non-controlling interest (continued) BARZFHE &)
Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical BRgEE
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current assets & E 22,053,012 99,868,528
Non-current assets EREEE 69,866,003 78,420,649
Total liabilities & AR (21,007,009)  (47,035,426)
Net assets LEFE 70,822,006 131,253,751
Equity attributable to owners of KN R EAEHE
the Company 37,836,538 72,189,563
Non-controlling interests JEIR R M &R 32,985,468 59,064,188
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

122 IEEEEETE0E

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that have material

non-controlling interest (continued)

3B. FEMBARZFHEE)

B.

BAEXFERESZZIFEEM

BARZEHE ®)

Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical (continued) PAAEREZ ()
2016 2015
HKS$ HK$
BT BT

Revenue I 65,537,843 16,430,212
Expenses g (50,429,717) (27,706,470)
Profit (loss) for the year KEEHF(EEHE) 15,108,126 (11,276,258)
Profit (loss) attributable to owners KRR ENL

of the Company st (518 ) 8,309,469 (6,201,941)
Profit (loss) attributable to the R SRS

non-controlling interests w A E1R ) 6,798,657 (5,074,317)
Profit (loss) for the year KEEHF(EHE) 15,108,126 (11,276,258)
Other comprehensive (expense) AN REERE

income attributable to owners 2| XM )

of the Company (2,292,968) 272,989
Other comprehensive (expense) R EREEREE

income attributable to the 2 X )k

non-controlling interests (2,055,407) 223,356
Other comprehensive (expense) AFEHEEEE

income for the year (ZH )z (4,348,375) 496,345
Total comprehensive income AASIBEREGLEE

(expense) attributable to owners s ( X U )4EER

of the Company 6,016,501 (5,928,952)
Total comprehensive income FEEERELE2E

(expense) attributable to the e X H )48

non-controlling interests 4,743,250 (4,850,961)
Total comprehensive income AFEE2EKHE

(expense) for the year (X Hi )45 10,759,751 (10,779,913)
Net cash outflow from operating KL TR E

activities B (5,035,002) (2,701,153)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from HETH RS

investing activities AR )EEE 24,105 (31,261,061)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from METH RS

financing activities (T )RANIEER (62,261,881) 1,260,398
Net cash outflows 34 PR (67,272,868)  (32,701,816)
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34.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For the purpose of impairment testing, the goodwill and
intangible assets has been allocated to three (2015: three) CGUs,
namely, (1) Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical, (2) Tianda Pharmaceuticals
(Zhuhai) and (3) Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia), which
amounting to HK$6,422,294 (2015: HK$6,699,306), HK$150,923,663
(2015: HK$169,147,321) and HK$8,717,139 (2015: HK$8,808,386),
respectively at 31 March 2016. All of which are engaged in the sales
of pharmaceuticals and biotechnology products and healthcare
products.

CGU for Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical

The recoverable amount of the CGU arising from Meng Sheng
Pharmaceutical was determined based on value in use calculations.
The value in use calculations use cash flow projection based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period and a post-tax discount rate of 12.66% (2015: 12.32%). Cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3%
growth rate for this CGU. The key assumption is budgeted revenue
and gross margins determined based on past performance and the
management’s expectations for the market development.

No impairment on this CGU is made for both years as the
recoverable amount, which is the value in use, exceeded the carrying
amount (comprising goodwill). The directors of the Company believe
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amounts of CGU.
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IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

CGU for Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai)

The recoverable amount of the CGU arising from Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) was determined based on value in use
calculations. The value in use calculations use cash flow projection
based on financial budget approved by management covering a ten-
year period and a post-tax discount rate of 13.66% (2015: 13.66%).
Cash flow beyond the 10-year period are extrapolated using a steady
3% growth rate for the CGU. The key assumption is budgeted
revenue and gross margins determined based on past performance
and the management's expectations for the market development.

No impairment on this CGU is made for both years as the
recoverable amount, which is the value in use, exceeded the carrying
amount (comprising goodwill and intangible assets). The Directors
believe that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the
CGU to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of CGU.

CGU for Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia)

The recoverable amount of the CGU arising from Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Australia) was determined based on value in use
calculations. The value in use calculations use cash flow projection
based on financial budgets approved by management covering five-
year period and a post-tax discount rate of 15.67% (2015: 15.67%).
Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady
3% growth rate for the CGU. The key assumption is budgeted
revenue and gross margins determined based on the past
performance and the management's expectations for the market
development.

No impairment on this CGU is made for both years as the
recoverable amount, which is the value in use, exceeded the carrying
amount (comprising goodwill and intangible assets). The Directors
believe that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the
CGU to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of CGU.
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